
               

1)  CALL TO ORDER: 7:00PM  
a) Approve Agenda 

2) PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, & VISITORS   
a) Public Comment: Public Comment will be accepted from online attendees at this time. 

Comments are limited to 5 minutes for comments on items other than Public Hearings listed 
below. There is a public comment period within each hearing. You may also submit comments 
by emailing City Administrator Ron Harding at rharding@aumsville.us by noon on December 11, 
2023. 

b) Visitors: For information about how to attend the meeting online, please call City Hall at 
503.749.2030 or email kpizzuto@aumsville.us to request login instructions. Information will also 
be posted on our website City Council Regular Meeting | City of Aumsville Oregon 
1) Corn Festival Proceeds: Proceeds from the 2023 Corn Festival will be presented to 

representatives from the service organizations that helped at this year’s Corn Festival. 
Representatives will have the opportunity to provide information on the services provided by 
their organization. (Organizations not able to have a representative present at the meeting 
will arrange to pick up their funds at City Hall at a later date.) 

3) CONSENT AGENDA: (Action) 
a) Minutes from the November 13, 2023 Regular Meeting 
b) Accounts Payable and Payroll Register 

4) PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
a) Open PacifiCorp Franchise Extension Hearing 

1) Staff Report 
2) Testimony/Public Comment  
3) Close Public Hearing 
4) Council Deliberations 
5) Council Decision (Action) 

a) First Reading of Ordinance 723 
b) Second Reading and Adoption 

5) OLD BUSINESS: None 

6) NEW BUSINESS:  
a) Resolution 12-23 Adopting a Specific Policy for System Development Charge Calculations 
b) RL Reimers Contract for Water Storage Tank & Pump Station Improvements 
c) Utility Rate Study – Recommendation to Award to FCS Group 

7) CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information) 
a) Police Department Monthly Report  
b) Public Works Monthly Report & SDC Annual Report 

        

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 
AUMSVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

In the Community Center and via Zoom Video Conference  
MONDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2023     

A G E N D A 
 

595 Main Street, Aumsville, OR 97325 
Office: (503) 749‐2030 ~ FAX: (503) 749‐1852 

Email: rharding@aumsville.us 



ACC Agenda — December 11, 2023   2 

 
8) MAYOR AND COUNCILORS REPORTS 

9) GOOD OF THE ORDER: Other Business May Come Before the Council at This Time 

10) CORRESPONDENCE:  

11) ADJOURNMENT REGULAR MEETING 

12) EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

 
 
 

The City of Aumsville does not and shall not; discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender expression, 
age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its activities or operations. 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should ask to be recognized by the Mayor or Chair at the beginning of that 
agenda item. The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities must be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  
Please call (503) 749-2030 and leave a message or Oregon Relay Service for TDD at (800) 735-2900.  



AUMSVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
November 13th, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

Mayor Angelica Ceja called the meeting to order at 7:03 PM. Present in person were Mayor 
Angelica Ceja, Councilors Nico Casarez, Della Seney, Scott Lee, Doug Cox, Katie Wallace, and 
Walter Wick. Council absent: None. Staff present: City Administrator (CA) Ron Harding, 
Assistant Public Works Director Matthew Etzel, and Assistant Administrator Kirsti Pizzuto. The 
meeting was video recorded to be released later. 

AGENDA APPROVAL: Councilor Casarez moved to approve the agenda as presented. Councilor 
Seney seconded. Council present voted unanimously to approve the agenda. Agenda approved. 

PRESENTATIONS:   
Jayne Downing and Paige Clarkson: Information on the Center for Hope and Safety 
Accompanied by service dog Maxwell, Downing and Clarkson presented on Domestic Violence 
within Marion County.  

VISITORS:  None.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 

CONSENT AGENDA Councilor Seney moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
Councilor Wick seconded the motion. Council present voted unanimously to approve the consent 
agenda. Motion passed.  

OLD BUSINESS: None. 

NEW BUSINESS:  
a) Westech Engineering, Recommendation for Award to R.L. Reimer- Water Storage
Tank and Pump Station Improvements
CA Harding presented a brief overview of the Water Tank actions before Council heard from
Assistant Public Works Director Matthew Etzel. CA Harding explained that the project did go up
in cost, but the project received 3.6 million in grants from the state. CA Harding stated that this
project is not one that impacts the Aumsville resident utility rate.
Etzel presented the staff report for the recommendation to award R.L. Reimer the contract for
the water storage tank and pump station improvements. Etzel stated that working with R.L.
Reimer on other projects with the City had been pleasant so far.

Agenda Item 3A



Aumsville City Council Meeting November 13, 2023 2 

Councilor Casarez moved to approve R.L. Reimers Co.'s bid of $3,170,250.00 for the Water Tank 
and Pump Station Improvements as presented by staff. Councilor Wick seconded. Council 
present voted unanimously to approve the motion. Motion passed. 
 
b) Westech Engineering, Construction Services Proposal- Water Storage Tank and 
Pump Station Improvements 
Etzel continued with the staff report for the services proposal. Etzel explained that the City 
received bids on two different kinds of tank materials. The City ended up choosing glass glass-
fused bolted steel tank. Public Works will be on-site to do day-to-day inspections for this project 
to make sure the city’s water system isn’t impacted during construction.  
 
Councilor Wallace asked where the tank will be located. Etzel explained it will be where the 
existing tank is, near Republic Services.  
 
Councilor Seney moved to approve the Aumsville Water Tank and Pump Station Construction 
Services Proposal from Westech with a not-to-exceed amount of $154,600.00 as presented by 
staff. Councilor Casarez seconded. Council present voted unanimously to approve the motion. 
Motion passed. 
 
c) The Automation Group (TAG) Integrator of Record, Integrated Equipment and 
Programming Quote- Water Storage Tank and Pump Station Improvements 
Etzel went on to present the staff report. Etzel explained it’s important to have one integrator 
providing all automation and equipment for the project so pumps will turn on and run based on 
water pressure and usage in the city.  
 
Councilor Casarez moved to approve the TAG Task Order for the Water Tank and Pump Station 
Integration in the amount of $249,978.00 as presented by staff. Councilor Seney seconded. 
Council present voted unanimously to approve the motion. Motion passed. 
 
d) Resolution 11-23 Authorizing the City to Distribute Funds Donated and Raised by 
the Corn Festival Event to Local Community Groups Providing Services within the 
City of Aumsville Service Area. 
CA Harding presented the resolution for distributing funds to local service groups that 
volunteered at City events. CA Harding stated the distribution depends on the number of 
volunteers and hours they put in as well as manual labor vs hospitality volunteers. CA Harding 
reminded Council that in years past, the corn bagging event had roughly 25 volunteers, whereas 
in 2023 there were over 75 volunteers. 
 
Councilor Seney moved to approve Resolution 11-23 Authorizing the City to Distribute Funds 
Donated and Raised by the Corn Festival Event to Local Community Groups Providing Services 
within the City of Aumsville Service Area as presented by staff. Councilor Casarez seconded. 
Mayor Ceja and Councilors Casarez, Seney, Lee, Cox, and Wick voted to approve the motion. 
Councilor Wallace abstained from voting. Motion passed. 
 

Agenda Item 3A



Aumsville City Council Meeting November 13, 2023 3 

 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT:  
CA Harding presented his Administrator report. DEQ approved the 20% design for the 
wastewater facility, which allows the City to move into 100% design phase. CA Harding 
discussed the recent tour to a nearby wastewater treatment facility and offered to provide 
another tour for anyone who was unable to attend. Councilor Lee requested a weekend tour 
with Councilors Casarez and Cox to see the facility.  
 
CA Harding stated there are two class action lawsuits for PFAS, which the City has not registered 
any contaminants. CA Harding doesn’t recommend joining the lawsuit as it doesn’t necessarily 
apply to the City currently. Etzel and Councilor Cox made inaudible comments. CA Harding stated 
the consensus of Council was to not join the lawsuit.  
 
The next update CA Harding gave was that the new Public Works facility is making progress in 
its build. The build is moving fast and CA Harding encouraged Council to drive by.  
CA Harding reminded Council that city staff asked to cancel the last council meeting in November 
and the last council meeting in December since they are so close to holidays. CA Harding stated 
the consensus of Council was to cancel those meetings.  
 
CA Harding gave an overview of what to expect for Christmas in the Park this year.  
 
MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS AND INITIATIVES:  
Councilor Wallace informed Council of the Christmas Store event the Exchange Club puts on for 
free for local children.  

Councilor Casarez invited everyone to the Aumsville Rural Fire District Turkey Shoot event that 
raises funds.  

Mayor Ceja summarized her week starting with the wastewater tour and a Blazer Industries 
tour, as well as attending a Historical Society meeting.  

GOOD OF THE ORDER: None. 

CORRESPONDENCE: None. 

Mayor Ceja adjourned the meeting without prejudice at 7:55 PM. 

_____________________________                            _____________________________                    
 
Angelica Ceja, Mayor      Ron Harding, City Administrator 

Agenda Item 3A



Payroll  Register

City  of  Aumsville

Fiscal:  2023-24

Deposit  Period:  2023-24  - November

Check  Period:  2023-24  - November  - Second  Council

Riveiview  Community  Bank

Check

Direct  Deposit  Run - 1 1/28/2023

EFT  12052023

EFT  12122023

EFT  12152023

EFT  48371129

EFT  75755563

EFT  HSAii302023

EFT  OSGP11302023

EFT  V11302023

9001000967

Payroll  Vendor

CIS TRUST

PERS

AFLAC

Oregon  Department  of Revenue
EFTPS

HSA  Bank

VOYA  - STATE  OF OREGON  - LG#:2234
Valic

Total

Total

Grand  Total

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

Check

9001000967

$41 ,998.14

$24,379.14

$15,805.91

$188.58

$4,212.98

$15,471  .41

$1 ,365.75

$585.00

$25.00

$104,031.91

$104,031.91

Btoa,os"i.g"i

Printed by AUMSVILLE\jhoyer  on 11/29/2023  3:54:06  PM

Payroll Register

Page 1 of 1

Agenda Item 3B



Fiscal:  2023-24

Accounts  Payable  Register

City  of  Aumsville

Deposit  Period:  2023-24  - November
Check  Period:  2023-24  - November  - Second  Council

Riverview  Community  Bank

Check
565 1

5652

565 3

5654

5655

565 6

-5657

5658

565 9

56520

56521

56522

56523

56524

56525

56526

56527

56528

56529

56530

565:31

56532

56534

56535

56536

FFT  Payment  1 1/30/2023  3:24:30  PM - 1
EFT  Payment  1 1/30/2023  3:24:30  PM - 2

EFT  Payment  1 1/30/2023  3:24:30  PM - 3
EFT  Payment  4 U30/2023  3:24:30  PM - 4

EFT  Payment  1 1/30/2023  3:24:30  PM - 5

EFT  Payment  1 1/30/2023  3:24:30  PM - 6

9001000967

911 SUPPLY

ARETE  ADVISORS  LLC

AUMSVILLE  ACE  HARDWARE

AUMSVILLE  HISTORICAL  SOCIETY

BEERY  ELSNER  & HAMMOND  LLP

CANYON  CONTRACTING  LLC

CASCADE  SCHOOL  DISTRICT

C-MORE  PIPE  SERVICES,  CO.

EXCHANGE  CLUB  OF  AUMSVILLE

FRERES  BUILDING  SUPPLY

GIRL  SCOUTS  OF OREGON  AND  SW

WASHINGTON,  INC
GOVERNMENT  ETHICS  COMMISSION

Marion  County  Sherriffs  Office

MARION  COUNTY  TREASURY
DEPARTMENT
METCOM  9-1 -1

MID-WILLAMETTE  VALLEY  COUNCIL  OF
GOVERNMENTS
MOTION  & FLOW

OFFICE  DEPOT,  INC

PETROCARD,  INC.

PLATT  ELECTRIC  SUPPLY

RON  HARDING

SALEM  OCCUPATIONAL  HEALTH  CLINIC

SANTIAM  MEMORIAL  HOSPIT  AL

STEVE  WHEELER  TIRE  CENTER

WATERLAB  CORP

ZUMAR  INDUSTRIES,  INC.

AT  &T MOBILITY

CIS  TRUST

NW  NATURAL

OREGON  DEPARTMENT  OF REVENUE

WAVE

ZIPLY  FIBER

Total

TOtal

Grand  Total

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

11 /30/2023

11 /30/2023

11/30/2023

11 /30/2023

11 /30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

/30/2023

Check

9001000967

$2,049.74

$341  .00

$151  .32

$1 ,500.00

$r,149.50

$7,425.00

$750.00

$3,410.00

$6,500.00

$175.98

$3,250.00

$945.68

$3,000.00

$2,618.29

$8,467.48

$1 ,361 .25

$64.35

$79.58

$382.44

$56.61

!$131.93

$170.00

$5,000.00

$1 ,991  ."iei

$200.00

$149.90

$120.12

$762.10

$171.71

$58.18

$9.95

$662.02

$53,105.89

$53,105.89

$53,105.89

Printed by AUMSVILLE\tpreston  on 11/30/2023  3:48:31  PM Page 1 of 1

Accounts Payable Register

Agenda Item 3B



Fiscal:  2023-24

Accounts  Payable  Register

City  of  Aumsville

Deposit  Period:  2023-24  - November
Check  Period:  2023-24  - November  - Second  Council

Riverview  Community  Bank

Check
56469

56471

56472

56473

56474

56476

56477

56478

g

i

i
56484

i
56486

56488

5fffil
56491

i

5j45;,
56494

i
56496

i
56498

56504

i

i

i

5ff;jj;1
EFT  Payment  1 1/1 5/2023  11 :47:05  AM
EFT Payment  1 1/1 5/2023  11 :47:05  AM - 2

EFT  Payment  1 1/1 5/2023  11 :47:05  AM - 3

EFT  Payment  1 1/1 5/2023  11 :47:05  AM - 4

9001000967

911 SUPPLY

AIRGAS  USA,  LLC

ANGELA  ROBINSON

BATTERIES  PLUS

BEERY  ELSNER  & HAMMOND  LLP

BMS  TECHNOLOGIES

BRANDON  BLYTHE

BRENDA  CAMPBELL

CITY  OF SALEM

COMPLETE  WIRELESS  SOLUTIONS

CORE  & MAIN  LP

DAMIAN  FLOWERS

DAVISON  AUTO  PARTS  INC

GREYSTONE  TACTICAL

JONES  DRILLING  co.,  INC.

JPLATA  FARM  LABOR  CONTRACTOR,
INC

KATHLEEN  M. BIEDE

MARION  COUNTY  TREASURY
DEPARTMENT
MATTHEW  ETZEL

MATTHEW  WINANS

METCOM  9-1-1

MOONLIGHT  MAINTENANCE

OAWU

OFFICE  DEPOT,  INC

ONE  CALL  CONCEPTS  INC

OREGON  DEPARTMENT  OF REVENUE

PACIFIC  OFFICE  AUTOMATION

PACIFIC  POWER

PETROCARD,  INC.

PHILLIP  WRIGHT

PLATT  ELECTRIC  SUPPLY

POWER  SYSTEMS  PLUS

RASMUSSEN  SPRAY  SERVICE,  INC.

RON  HARDING

SHANE  BIRD

ST  AN BUTTERFIELD  P.C.

STEVE  OSLIE

STEVE  WHEELER  TIRE  CENTER

TAYLOR  MACK

THAYNE  CROWTHER

WESTECH  ENGINEERING  INC

ZIONS  BANK  CORPORATE  TRUST

INVOICE  CLOUD

PACIFIC  OFFICE  AUTOMATION

REPUBLIC  SERVICES  #456

RIVERVIEW  COMMUNITY  BANK

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

1l  /1 5/2023

11 /1 5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

5/2023

$609.72

$1 ,070.68

$180.00

$25.50

$2,097.75

$725.64

$180.00

$651  .88

$1 ,842.50

$4,739.27

$927.00

$300.00

$62.72

$59.50

$306,770.00

$10,000.00

$106.00

$945.00

$300.00

$180.00

$8,467.48

$601  .00

$710.00

$132.46

$5.60

$3,008.00

$69.25

$7,864.00

$2,979.18

$180.00

$7.56

$4,555.00

$lOi.75

$300.00

$300.00

$750.00

$300.00

$1 ,985.52

$120.00

$180.00

$48,897.46

$1 18,931  .51

$233.80

$86.70

$60.00

$8,026.70

Printed by AUMSVILLE\tpreston  on 11/15/2023  11:48:04  AM Page I of 2

Accounts Payable Register

Agenda Item 3B



EFT Payment  1 1/15/;)n23  I 1:47:05  AM - 5 WAVE

Total
Total

Grand  Total

11 /1 5/2023

Check
9001000967

$9.95

$540,636.08
$540,636.08
$540,636.08

Printed by AUMSVILLE\tpreston on 11/15/2023 11:48:04  AM Page 2 of  2

Accounts Payable Register

Agenda Item 3B



Payroll  Register

City  of  Aumsville

Fiscal:  2023-24

Deposit  Period:  2023-24  - November

Check  Period:  2023-24  - November  - First  Council

Riverview  Community  Bank

Check
56468

Direct Deposit  Run  - 11/13/2023
EFT  11292023

EFT  94634898

EFT  99371114

EFT  HSA11152023

EFT  OSGP11152023

EFT  V11152023

9001000967

CASCADE  SCHOOL  DISTRICT
Payroll  Vendor

PERS

EFTPS

Oregon  Department  of Revenue
HSA  Bank

VOYA  - STATE  OF OREGON  - LG#:2234
Valic

Total

Total

Grand  Total

11 /1 5/2023 $302.43
11/15/2023  $41,843.28
11 /1 5/2023 $15,785.88
11 /1 5/2023 $15,410.99
11 /1 5/2023 $4,179.30
11 /1 5/2023 $1 ,365.75
11 /1 5/2023 $585.00
11/1 5/2023 $25.00

Check  $79,497.63
9001000967  $79,497.63

$79,497.63

Printed by AUMSVILLE\jhoyer  on 11/14/2023  10:11:36  AM Page 1 of 1

Payroll Register

Agenda Item 3B



Payroll  Register

City  of  Aumsville

Fiscal:  2023-24

Deposit  Period:  2023-24  - October

Check  Period:  2023-24  - October  - Second  Counci

Riverview  Community  Bank

Check

Direct  Deposit  Run - 1 0/27/2023

EFT 11062023

EFT 11132023

EFT 11152023

EFT  31371030

EFT  62512469

EFT  HSA10312023

EFT  OSGPl03i2023

EFT  V103i  2023

9001000967

Payroll  Vendor

CIS TRUST

PERS

AFLAC

Oregon  Department  of Revenue
EFTPS

HSA  Bank

VOYA  - ST  ATE  OF OREGON  - LG#:2234
Valic

Total

Total

Grand  Total

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

0/3 /2023

Check

9001000967

$40,438.60

$24,380.22

$15,317.72

$188.58

$4,096.98

$15,109.54

$1 ,365.75

$585.00

$25.00

$101,507.39

$101,507.39

$101,507.39

Printed by AUMSVILLE\jhoyer  on 10/30/2023  11:30:56  AM Page 1 of 1

Payroll Register

Agenda Item 3B



595 Main St. Aumsville, Oregon 97325 
(503) 749-2030  TTY 711  Fax (503) 749-1852
www.aumsville.us

STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  December 11, 2023 
TO:  City of Aumsville City Council 
FROM:  Ron Harding, City Administrator 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 723, Extension of PacifiCorp Franchise Agreement 

BACKGROUND: 
On July 9, 2012 the City Council approved Ordinance No. 619 which granted a non-exclusive 
franchise agreement for PacifiCorp (dba Pacific Power) for a period of ten years, effective 
August 13, 2012. The purpose of Ordinance 619 was to authorize the continued development 
and operation of an electric utility system to serve the citizens of Aumsville, with an intent to 
contribute significantly to meeting the electrical needs and desires of many individuals, 
associations, and institutions in the city. In December 2022, Aumsville City Council passed 
Ordinance 710 to extend the franchise agreement to December 31, 2023. 

The approved franchise agreement granted Pacific Power the right, privilege, and franchise 
authority to: 

1. Own, construct, expand, upgrade, maintain, operate, and relocate an electric utility
system within the city.

2. Install, maintain, and operate in, under, along, over and across the Public Ways within
the City, Electric Facilities; for PacifiCorp’s own use for the purpose of supplying and
transmitting electric power and energy to be distributed to the city and to its
inhabitants, and persons and corporations.

CURRENT SITUATION:  
The previous extension granted by Ordinance 710 expires on December 31, 2023, and a new 
franchise agreement has not yet been finalized. PacificCorp wants to rewrite the agreement 
to be standardized with other agreements, however, the City has had concerns over some of 
their language. It is our agreement to provide, so the City has insisted on using our 
language, which has been the point of disagreement.  

Ordinance No. 723 would further extend the franchise agreement to ensure that the terms of 
the existing franchise between the City and Pacific Power remain in place until December 31, 
2024. This would allow for additional time to negotiate the terms of a new franchise 
agreement to be finalized. 

Agenda Item 4A



2 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Power utilities are necessary for the peace, health, and safety of the people of the City of 
Aumsville. Staff recommends that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 723 to extend the 
franchise granted to PacifiCorp dba Pacific Power via Ordinance No. 619.  
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS – 1ST ACTION: 
 

 Move to approve the first reading by title only of Ordinance No. 723, an ordinance 
extending the franchise granted to PacifiCorp dba Pacific Power via Ordinance 619; 
declaring an emergency, as presented by staff. 

 Move to approve the first reading by title only of Ordinance No. 723, an ordinance 
extending the franchise granted to PacifiCorp dba Pacific Power via Ordinance 619; 
declaring an emergency, as amended by 

 
 Remand back to staff to provide additional research or modification. 

 
*If passing vote is unanimous for first action, Council may move to approve second reading and 
adopt. 
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS – 2nd ACTION: 
 

 Move to approve the second reading by title only and adopt Ordinance No. 723, an 
ordinance extending the franchise granted to PacifiCorp dba Pacific Power via 
Ordinance 619; declaring an emergency, as presented by staff 

 Move to approve the second reading by title only and adopt Ordinance No.723, an 
ordinance extending the franchise granted to PacifiCorp dba Pacific Power via 
Ordinance 619; declaring an emergency, as amended by 

 
 Remand back to staff to provide additional research or modification. 

 
 

Agenda Item 4A



Ordinance No. 723

ORDINANCE NO. 723 

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE FRANCHISE GRANTED TO PACIFICORP dba 
PACIFIC POWER VIA ORDINANCE 619; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 619 on July 9, 2012 (with an effective 
date of August 13, 2012), granting a non-exclusive electric franchise to PacifiCorp dba Pacific 
Power (“Pacific”); and 

WHEREAS, the franchise for Pacific was granted for a period of ten years from and after the 
effective date noted above of August 13, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Pacific are negotiating toward a new franchise agreement but have 
not as of yet finalized its terms; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Pacific extended the term of the franchise through December 31, 
2023 via Ordinance 721 and wish to further extend the franchise approved via Ordinance No. 
619 until December 31, 2024 to provide both the City and Pacific time to negotiate and 
finalize a new franchise; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the public interest to extend the terms of the 
franchise approved via Ordinance 619; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that an emergency should be declared so this  Ordinance 
may take effect immediately as a result of the expiration of the Pacific franchise approved via 
Ordinance 619 so that its terms are effective and remain in place for the period between 
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024 to ensure the terms of the existing franchise 
between the City and Pacific relative to Pacific’s use of the City’s rights of way remain in 
place.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Aumsville ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Extension of Electric Franchise. The City hereby extends the terms of the 
Franchise approved by the City via Ordinance No. 619 until 11:59 p.m. December 31, 2024. 

Section 2. Emergency Clause. Because it is necessary for the peace, health, and safety of 
the people of the City of Aumsville, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this 
ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage by the Council. 

// 

// 

// 

//

Agenda Item 4A



Ordinance No. 723 

PRESENTED AND PASSED the first reading by title only on the 11th day of December 
2023. ADOPTED AND PASSED the second reading by the Aumsville City Council on the 11th 
day of December 2023.       
 

______________________________ 
        Angelica Ceja, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________  
Ron Harding, City Administrator  
 

Agenda Item 4A



595 Main St. Aumsville, Oregon 97325 
(503) 749-2030  TTY 711  Fax (503) 749-1852
www.aumsville.us

STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  December 11, 2023 
TO:  City of Aumsville City Council 
FROM:  Ron Harding, City Administrator 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 12-23 Adopting a Policy for SDC Calculations 

BACKGROUND: 
There have been a number of legislative bills approved this year that have an impact on the 
Aumsville community. In some cases, previous bills targeted cities with a population base 
above 10,000 in how they are allowed to administer their development standards. This year 
some new bills moved the threshold from 10,000 to 2,500 in population. Thinking about the 
effects of these state laws and how they impact our community should be strategic. 

House Bill 2984 (“HB 2984”) amended ORS 197.308 to require local governments to allow 
the conversion of buildings from commercial to residential use within urban growth 
boundaries of cities with a population of 10,000 or greater, under certain conditions. 

HB 2984, Section 1(5)(c) permits cities to charge system development charges (“SDCs”) in 
connection with a commercial to residential use conversion for a contemplated housing 
development if “(A) the charge is calculated pursuant to a specific adopted policy for 
commercial to residential conversions adopted on or before December 31, 2023; or (B) the 
charge is for water or wastewater and includes an offset for at least 100 percent of the water 
or wastewater system development charges paid when the building was originally 
constructed 

The restriction on charging SDCs in HB 2984 would not impact us today as it addresses a 
population above 10,000, however as we have seen this year with HB 3395, once adopted 
these population thresholds can easily be changed. If it were changes in the future then we 
would have already forfeited our ability to set a policy. This is why we are attempting to 
position Aumsville in a position to have as much local control as possible.  

CURRENT SITUATION:  
The city has a policy that growth should not be subsidized by current ratepayers in general 
and we have extremely expensive capital needs so to ensure in the future the city can collect 
system development charges should a commercial/housing conversion occur in the future, 
staff recommends approving resolution.  

Agenda Item 6A



2 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approve Resolution 12-23, setting an SDC policy related to HB 2984.  
  
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

 Move to approve Resolution 12-23 Adopting a Specific Policy for System Development 
Charge Calculations in Connection with Commercial to Residential Conversions as 
Required by House Bill 2984, as presented by staff. 
 

 Move to approve resolution 12-23 Adopting a Specific Policy for System Development 
Charge Calculations in Connection with Commercial to Residential Conversions as 
Required by House Bill 2984, as amended by 
 

 
 Remand back to staff to provide additional research or modification. 

   
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6A



RESOLUTION NO. 12-23 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SPECIFIC POLICY FOR SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE 
CALCULATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH COMMERCIAL TO RESIDENTIAL CONVERSIONS, 

AS REQUIRED BY HOUSE BILL 2984 
 

WHEREAS, House Bill 2984 (“HB 2984”) amended ORS 197.308 to require local governments to allow 
the conversion of buildings from commercial to residential use within urban growth boundaries of cities 
with a population of 10,000 or greater, under certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, although the current population of the City of Aumsville (the “City”) is less than 10,000, 
the City anticipates it may grow beyond 10,000; and  

 
WHEREAS, HB 2984, Section 1(5)(c) permits cities to charge system development charges (“SDCs”) 
in connection with a commercial to residential use conversion for a contemplated housing development 
if “(A) the charge is calculated pursuant to a specific adopted policy for commercial to residential 
conversions adopted on or before December 31, 2023; or (B) the charge is for water or wastewater 
and includes an offset for at least 100 percent of the water or wastewater system development charges 
paid when the building was originally constructed;” and 

 
WHEREAS, if the City’s population reaches 10,000 or greater, the City desires to be able to charge all 
applicable SDCs in connection with such commercial to residential use conversions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes that the Aumsville Ordinance No. 678 sufficiently addresses all 
SDC methodology, rates, and other applicable terms and conditions needed to calculate SDC charges 
in connection with commercial to residential conversions pursuant to HB 2984. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE AUMSVILLE CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby Aumsville Ordinance No. 678, as currently in effect and as may 
be amended from time to time, as the City’s specific policy for SDC calculations in 
connection with all residential development, including commercial to residential 
conversions pursuant to HB 2984. 

 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the City Council. 

 
Resolution adopted by the Aumsville City Council this 11th day of December 2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Ron Harding, City Administrator 

 
 
 
Angelica Ceja, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Date

 



595 Main St. Aumsville, Oregon 97325 
(503) 749-2030  TTY 711  Fax (503) 749-1852
www.aumsville.us

STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  December 11, 2023 

TO:   City of Aumsville City Council 

FROM: Matthew Etzel, Assistant Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: RL Reimers Contract Approval – Water Storage Tank and Pump Station Project 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve RL Reimers Contract for the Water Storage Tank and Pump 
Station Project. 

BACKGROUND: Earlier this month at the November 13th Aumsville City Council meeting Staff 
presented a recommendation to award RL Reimers the Water Storage and Pump Station 
Project.   

RL Reimers was low bid and the bid was reviewed by the City Engineer.  RL Reimers is in the 
process of providing the bonding information for the contracts and, once they do so, will sign 
the contracts. 

As you are aware the Aumsville City Council is the Contract Review Board for the City and 
contracts need to be approved by the council.  This contract was previously included in the 
bidding documents for your review and now for final review before signing.  Once we receive 
the bonding information and the contractor's signatures, we will have Westech review the bond 
information and submit executed copies to the funding agency and have set on file at City Hall.  

If we receive updated copies with bonding and contractor’s signatures before the council 
meeting on December 11th we will update the council with the most current version. 

CURRENT SITUATION: The contract for the Water Storage and Pump Station Improvements 
will need to be signed for the contractor to start work. This project is funded with ARPA funds 
that have a completion deadline of 2026. Although we are well ahead of the deadline on this 
project, it is important to keep these projects moving forward with supply chain issues and the 
continued escalation of cost on materials and equipment.  

Agenda Item 6B



2 
 

COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

 Move to approve the RL Reimers Contract for the Water Storage Tank and Pump Station 
Project as presented by staff 

 Move to approve the contracts for the RL Reimers Contract for the Water Storage Tank 
and Pump Station Project as amended by 
 

 Remand back to staff to provide additional research or modification 

Agenda Item 6B



JO – 2599.4040.0

PART 2:

CONTRACT FORMS

Agenda Item 6B



 
JO  2599.4040.0 AGREEMENT  -  1 of 4  

  
 

 AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the City of Aumsville, hereinafter called the Owner, and R.L. 

Reimers Company hereinafter called the Contractor.   

 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and the Owner, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as 

follows: 

 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF THE WORK:  The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish: All materials, labor and 

equipment and incidentals, and to perform all work shown on the drawings and described in the specifications 

for the project prepared by WESTECH ENGINEERING, INC., Salem, Oregon, hereinafter referred to as 

Engineer; entitled:   

Water Storage Tank and Pump Station Improvements 

 

The work shall include those items listed in the Schedule of Prices on the Bid Form dated October 17, 2023 

as follows: 

Bid Items 1 through 10 and Alternate A1 

 

and shall be in accordance with the requirements and provisions of the Contract Documents as defined in 

Article IV of this Agreement, which Contract Documents are enclosed herewith, and are hereby made a part 

of this Agreement.   

 

The Contractor also agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, municipal ordinances, 

and rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the construction, and specifically, the 

applicable provisions of Oregon law relating to public contracts (ORS Chapter 279C) which by this reference 

are incorporated in the Contract Documents and made a part hereof. 

 

ARTICLE II - CONTRACT TIME AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:   

All construction shall be substantially complete  prior to December 24, 2024, and all work entirely complete 

(ie. Final Completion, including completion of all punchlist items and submittal of all invoices) prior to 

January 31, 2025. 

 

Liquidated Damages:  The Owner and the Contractor recognize that time is of the essence of this 

Agreement and that the Owner will suffer financial loss if the work is not substantially completed within the 

timeframes specified in the paragraphs above (or elsewhere in the Contract Documents), plus any extensions 

thereof allowed in accordance with the General Conditions of the Contract Documents.  They also recognize 

the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal proceeding the actual loss suffered by the 

Owner if the work is not substantially completed on time.  Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, 

the Owner and the Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty), the Contractor 

shall pay the Owner the amounts listed below for each and every day that expires after the time specified for 

Substantial Completion or Final Completion. 

 

Agenda Item 6B



 
JO  2599.4040.0 AGREEMENT  -  2 of 4  

  
 

The parties further agree that this amount of liquidated damages is a reasonable forecast of just 

compensation for the harm caused by any breach and that this harm is one which is impossible or very 

difficult to estimate.  In addition to the liquidated damages above, the Contractor shall reimburse the 

Engineer for the cost incurred for engineering, inspection and project management services required beyond 

the Contract Time limit as outlined herein.  The Contractor shall also reimburse the Engineer for all costs 

incurred for inspection and project management services required due to punchlist items which are not 

completed within the Contract Time limit or the date specified on the Certificate of Substantial Completion, 

whichever is later.  If the Contractor fails to reimburse the Engineer directly, the Owner will deduct the cost 

final pay request.   

 

Liquidated damages shall apply against the successful bidder (the Contractor) and accrue to the Owner at the 

rate of five hundred dollars ($500) for each day that expires after the time specified for Substantial 

Completion until the work is substantially complete.  After Substantial Completion, if the Contractor shall 

neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining work within the Contract Time for Final Completion or any 

proper extension thereof granted by the Owner, the Contractor shall pay the Owner five hundred dollars 

($500) for each calendar day that expires after the time specified above for the work to be complete and ready 

for final payment.   

 

ARTICLE III  PAYMENT:  The Owner shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of the work the 

total amounts determined by lump sum and unit prices listed in the Bid Form.  Based on the estimated 

quantities and the stated units & prices, the total Contract sum is  three million, one-hundred seventy 

thousand, two-hundred fifty dollars and no cents ($3,170,250.00).  Progress payments shall be made in 

f the Contract.  The required submittal date for pay 

requests will be as determined by the Owner and shall be far enough prior to the end of each month to meet 

the established review & processing timelines.   

 

Retainage & Offsets.  Retainage shall be as specified in the Information for Bidders.  Owner may retain 

additional off-sets from the amount due as summarized under General Conditions 14.02.B.5 & D.2, or GC 

14.07.C.1, to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Owner from loss due to any of the enumerated 

conditions (including but not limited to Contractor liability for liquidated damages).   

 

ARTICLE IV - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:  The Contract Documents which comprise the entire 

agreement between the Owner and Contractor are attached to this Agreement, made a part hereof, and 

consists of the following:  Bidding Documents, including but not limited to Invitation to Bid, Information for 

Bidders, Instructions to Bidders, Supplementary Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form including bid forms & 

Schedule of Prices, Subcontractor Disclosure Forms, Bid Bond, Agreement, Performance Bond, Payment 

Bond, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplemental General and other conditions), Addenda No. 1 

through 3 Notice of Award, Notice to Proceed, Technical Specifications & Appendices, and full size 

Construction Drawings, containing sixty four (64) sheets, as well as proof of insurance (insurance 

certificates) and applicable Prevailing Wage Rates.   

 

Agenda Item 6B



 
JO  2599.4040.0 AGREEMENT  -  3 of 4  

  
 

The Contract Documents are complementary and what is called out by any portion of the Contract 

Documents (drawings, specifications, or any contract forms) shall be as binding as if called for by all.   

 

In construing this Agreement, it is understood that: (1) if the context so requires: (a) the singular pronoun 

shall be taken to mean and include the plural pronoun; (b) the masculine pronoun shall be taken to mean the 

feminine and gender neutral pronoun; (2) all captions used herein are intended solely for the convenience of 

reference and shall in no way limit any of the provisions of this Agreement; and (3) anything mentioned in 

the specifications and not shown on the drawings, or shown on the drawings and not mentioned in the 

specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both.   

 

ARTICLE V - PREVAILING WAGE.   Contractor must pay the current prevailing wage rates as 

established by the Bureau of Labor and in accordance with ORS 279C.800  279C.870 and contained herein, 

including daily, weekly, weekend and holiday overtime as required.  Contractor is responsible for submitting 

any required notifications and copies of certified payrolls to BOLI, and also directly to the Owner.  

 

ARTICLE VI  TAX CERTIFICATION.  The Contractor hereby certifies in writing, under penalty of 

perjury, that he/she is, to the best of his/her knowledge, not in violation of any tax laws described in ORS 

305.380(4). 

 

ARTICLE VII  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES.  Evidence of insurance coverage must be submitted on 

current s (or other insurance certificate containing the same information) that EITHER 

includes  OR 

agent shall submit a written letter stating that copies of insurance certificates will be sent to the Owner and 

resentative a minimum of every 30 days, throughout the term of the required insurance 

under the contract.  The Owner and Westech Engineering must be included as additional insured, with the 

Owner being named as certificate holder.  In addition, insurance or bond riders must be provided if required 

under the terms of any permit that the Contractor must obtain from any City, County, service district or state 

agency with jurisdiction over the work.   

 

ARTICLE VIII - OTHER PROVISIONS.  This Agreement shall be binding on all parties hereto and their 

respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.  Pursuant with OAR 137-049-0200(2), 

the Contractor shall not assign, sell, dispose of, or a transfer rights, or delegate duties under this Agreement, 

either in whole or in part

in writing, such consent shall not relieve the Contractor of any obligations under the Contract.  Any assignee 

or transferee shall be considered the agent of the Contractor and be bound to abide by all provisions of the 

Agreement.  If Owner consents in writing to an assignment, sale, disposal

y, if any, shall remain liable to 

Owner for complete performance of the Contract as if no such assignment, sale, disposal, transfer, or 

delegation had occurred, unless Owner agrees otherwise in writing. 

 

Agenda Item 6B



 
JO  2599.4040.0 AGREEMENT  -  4 of 4  

  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their duly 

authorized officials, this Agreement in four (4) copies each of which shall be deemed an original.  Each party 

represents by signing below that he/she has authority to sign this agreement and to fully bind the principals 

thereto. 

 

Dated _______________, 2023  (Contractor to fill in date, must match the date on bond forms) 
 

R.L. Reimers Company (Contractor) 

By ____________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Title __________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Type/Print Name:   _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

City of Aumsville (Owner) 

By: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Title: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Type/Print Name:   _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Attest (ie. to City Signature):____________________________________________________________ 

 City Recorder (if required by City Charter) 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PAYMENT BOND  -  1 of 4  
   

Bond No. ___________________ 

PAYMENT BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Obligee, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Address): 

 
R.L. Reimers Company  
 
3939 Old Salem Road NE, Suite 200  
 
Albany, OR 97321  

 
  
 
  
 
  

OWNER (Name and Address): 
The City of Aumsville 
595 Main Street  
Aumsville, OR 97325 

CONTRACT 
Date:  ______________ (Contractor to fill in, match date on signature page of Agreement) 
Amount:  $3,170,250.00 
Project Name:  Aumsville Water Storage Tank and Pump Station Improvements 

BOND 
Date  _______________ (Contractor to fill in, match date on signature page of Agreement): 
Amount:  $3,170,250.00 
Modifications to this Bond:  None 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY 

Company: (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________  
 
Name  _________________________________  
 
Title  _________________________________  

Company: (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
Signature_________________________________  
 
Name  _________________________________  
 
Title  _________________________________  
 

FOR INFORMATION ONLY  Name, Address and Telephone 

Agent Or Broker, Name & Address: 

  ____________________________________  
  ____________________________________  
  ____________________________________  
 
  ____________________________________  
Agent/Broker Phone # 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE  
Westech Engineering, Inc 
3841 Fairview Industrial Dr. SE, Suite 100 
Salem, OR  97302-1192 
(503) 585-2474 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PAYMENT BOND  -  2 of 4  
   

ARTICLES

1. The Contractor and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, and 
administrators, successors and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials and equipment furnished 
for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.  The 
Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, agree that this Bond shall be deemed amended 
automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to 
the Construction Contract not increasing the Contract Price more than twenty-five percent (25%).  The 
term "amendment" wherever used in this Bond, and whether referring to this Bond, the Construction 
Contract or the loan documents, shall include any alteration, extension, or modification of any character 
whatsoever. 

2. With respect to the Owner, this obligation shall be null and void if the Contractor: 

2.1 Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due Claimants, and 

2.2 Defends, indemnifies and holds harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens or suits by any 
person or entity whose claim, demand, lien or suit is for the payment for labor, materials or 
equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract. 

3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and void if the Contractor promptly makes 
payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due. 

4. Claimant is defined as persons claiming to have supplied labor or materials for the prosecution of the 
work provided for in the Construction Contract, including any person having a direct contractual 
relationship with the Contractor furnishing the Bond or direct contractual relationship with any 
subcontractor, or an assignee of such person, or a person claiming monies due to the State Accident 
Insurance Fund Corporation, the State Department of Employment Trust Fund, or the Department of 
Revenue, in connection with the performance of the Construction Contract, has a right of action on the 
Contractor's Bond as provided in ORS 279C.380 and 279C.400 only if: 

4.1 the person or the assignee of the person has not been paid in full; and 

4.2 the person gives written notice of claim, as prescribed in ORS 279C.600, to the Contractor and 
the Secretary of State, if the Construction Contract is with a state agency, or the clerk or auditor if the 
public body is other than a state agency. 

The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation, the terms `labor, materials or equipment, 
that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the 
Construction Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the work of 
the Contractor, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where 
the labor, materials or equipment were furnished. 

5. The Contractor and Surety hereby jointly and severally agree with the Owner that every Claimant, who 
has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period of one hundred eighty (180) days (200 days for 
the filing of fringe benefit claims) after the date on which the last of such Claimant's work or labor was 
done or performed, or materials were furnished by such Claimant, for which claim is made, may have a 
right of action on this Bond.  The Owner shall not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses 
including attorneys' fees, which the Owner may incur in connection with its defense of any such right of 
action. 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PAYMENT BOND  -  3 of 4  
   

6. No suit or action shall be commenced on this Bond by any Claimant: 

6.1 Unless Claimant shall have given written notice to the Contractor and the Secretary of State, if 
the Construction Contract is with a state agency, or the clerk or auditor of the public body which 
let the Construction Contract if the public body is other than a state agency, within one hundred 
eighty (180) days (200 days for the filing of fringe benefit claims) after such Claimant did or 
performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the materials for which said 
claim is made, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party 
to whom the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done or performed.  
Such notice shall be served by mailing the same by registered mail or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, or hand delivered in an envelope addressed to the Contractor, and such other entity 
who is to receive notice, at any place where that party maintains an office, conducts business, or 
at its residence, or delivered to that location. 

6.2 After the expiration of two (2) years from the date on which the Claimant last performed labor, 
materials or equipment.  Any limitation embodied in this Bond, which is prohibited by any law 
controlling the project, shall be deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the minimum period 
of limitation permitted by law. 

7. When the Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 4, the Surety shall promptly and at the 
Surety's expense take the following actions: 

7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt 
of the claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts 
that are disputed. 

7.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts. 

7.3 hall not be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acquire as to a 
Claim, except as to undisputed amounts for which the Surety and Claimant have reached 
agreement.  If, however, the Surety fails to discharge its obligations under Section 7.1 or 
Section 7.2, the surety shall indemnify t
Claimant incurs thereafter to recover any sums found to be due and owing to the Claimant.   

8. The Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond and any amendments thereto as 
outlined in  and 
the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by Surety. 

9. Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract shall be used for the 
performance of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any Construction 
Performance Bond.  By the Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all 
funds earned by the Contractor in the performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfy 
obligations of the Contractor and the Surety under this Bond, subject to the Owner's priority to use the 
funds for the completion of the work. 

10. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants, or others for obligations of the Contractor that 
are unrelated to the Construction Contract.  The Owner shall not be liable for payment of any costs or 
expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligations to make 
payments to, give notices on behalf of, or otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Bond. 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PAYMENT BOND  -  4 of 4  
   

11. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract 
or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.

12. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location 
where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or 
legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or 
other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein.  The intent is that this Bond shall be 
construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond. 

13. Upon request by any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor 
shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made. 

14. DEFINITIONS 

14.1 Construction Contract:  The agreement between the Owner and the Contractor identified on the 
signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto. 

MODIFICATIONS TO THIS BOND ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

None. 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PERFORMANCE BOND  -  1 of 4  
   

Bond No. ___________________ 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Obligee, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Address): 

 
R.L. Reimers Company  
 
3939 Old Salem Road NE, Suite 200  
 
Albany, OR 97321  

 
  
 
  
 
  

OWNER: 
The City of Aumsville 
595 Main Street  
Aumsville, OR 97325 

 

CONTRACT 
Date:  ______________ (Contractor to fill in, match date on signature page of Agreement) 
Amount:  $3,170,250.00 
Project Name:  Aumsville Water Storage Tank and Pump Station Improvements 

BOND 
Date  _______________ (Contractor to fill in, match date on signature page of Agreement): 
Amount:  $3,170,250.00 
Modifications to this Bond:  None 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY 

Company: (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________  
 
Name  _________________________________  
 
Title  _________________________________  

Company: (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
Signature_________________________________  
 
Name  _________________________________  
 
Title  _________________________________  
 

FOR INFORMATION ONLY  Name, Address and Telephone 

Agent Or Broker, Name & Address: 

  ____________________________________  
  ____________________________________  
  ____________________________________  
 
  ____________________________________  
Agent/Broker Phone # 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE  
Westech Engineering, Inc 
3841 Fairview Industrial Dr. SE, Suite 100 
Salem, OR  97302-1192 
(503) 585-2474 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PERFORMANCE BOND  -  2 of 4  
   

ARTICLES 

1. The Contractor and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executor, 
administrators, successors and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract 
and any extension thereof, and during the twenty-four (24) month warranty/guaranty period, which 
contract, extension and guaranty are incorporated herein by reference.  This bond shall remain in full 
force and effect as a maintenance/warranty bond during the entire guaranty/warranty period, unless 
replaced with a separate warranty/maintenance bond acceptable to the Owner.   

2. If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract (including any repairs required during the warranty 
period), the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond, except to participate in 
conferences as provided in Subparagraph 3.1. 

3. If there is no Owner Default, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after: 

3.1 The Owner has notified the Contractor and the Surety at its address described on the signature 
page herein, that the Owner is considering declaring the Contractor Default and has requested 
and attempted to arrange a conference with the Contractor and the Surety to be held not later 
than fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice to discuss methods of performing the 
Construction Contract.  If the Owner, the Contractor and Surety agree, the Contractor shall be 
allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement shall 
not waive the Owner's right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default; and;  

3.2 The Owner has declared Contractor Default and formally terminated the Contractor's right to 
complete the contract.  Such Contractor Default shall not be declared earlier than twenty (20) 
days after the Contractor and the Surety have received notice as provided in Subparagraph 3.1; 
and; 

3.3 The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to the Surety in accordance with 
the terms of the Construction Contract or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction 
Contract in accordance with the terms of the contract with the Owner. 

4. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the 
Surety's expense take one of the following actions: 

4.1 Arrange for the Contractor, with consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the 
Construction Contract; or  

4.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or 
through independent contractors, which agents or independent contractors shall be acceptable to 
the Owner; or 

4.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a 
contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to 
be prepared for execution by the Owner and the contractor selected with the Owner's 
concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety 
equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount 
of damages as described in Paragraph 6 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred 
by the Owner resulting from the Contractor's default; or 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PERFORMANCE BOND  -  3 of 4  
   

4.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and 
with reasonable promptness under the circumstances: 

 4.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the Owner and, 
as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefor to the 
Owner; or 

 4.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner citing reasons therefor. 

5. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 4 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall 
be deemed to be in default on this Bond fifteen (15) days after receipt of an additional written notice 
from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the 
Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.  If the Surety proceeds as 
provided in Subparagraph 4.4, and the Owner refuses the payment tendered or the Surety has denied 
liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy 
available to the Owner. 

6. After the Owner has terminated the Contractor's right to complete the Construction Contract, and if the 
Surety elects to act under Subparagraph 4.1, 4.2, or 4.3 above, then the responsibilities of the Surety to 
the Owner shall not be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the 
responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be greater than those of the Owner under the 
Construction Contract.  To the limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by the 
Owner of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Construction 
Contract, the Surety is obligated without duplication for: 

6.1 The responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the 
Construction Contract; 

6.2 Additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the Contractor's Default, 
and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 4; and 

6.3 Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, 
actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor. 

7. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated 
to the Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on 
account of any such unrelated obligations.  No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or 
entity other than the Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors. 

8. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract 
or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations. 

9. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent 
jurisdiction in the location in which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted within 
two (2) years after Contractor Default or within two (2) years after the Contractor ceased working or 
within two (2) years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, 
whichever occurs first.  If the provisions of this Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum 
period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable. 

10. Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed by certified or registered mail or 
delivered to the address shown on the signature page. 

Agenda Item 6B



JO  2599.4040.0 PERFORMANCE BOND  -  4 of 4  
   

11. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location 
where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or 
legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or 
other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein.  The intent is that this Bond shall be 
construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond. 

12. DEFINITIONS 

12.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under 
the Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to 
the Contractor of any amounts received or to be received by the Owner in settlement of 
insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid 
and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction Contract. 

12.2 Construction Contract: The agreement between the Owner and the Contractor identified on the 
signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto. 

12.3 Contractor Default: Failure of the Contractor, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to 
perform or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Construction Contract. 

 
12.4 Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the 

Contractor as required by the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with 
the other terms thereof. 

MODIFICATIONS TO THIS BOND ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

None. 

Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



JO – 2599.4040.0  
 

PART 3:

CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT

Agenda Item 6B



JO – 2599.4040.0  
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS

Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



JO – 2599.4040.0  
 

SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS

Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



Agenda Item 6B



595 Main St. Aumsville, Oregon 97325 
(503) 749-2030  TTY 711  Fax (503) 749-1852
www.aumsville.us

STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  December 11, 2023 

TO:   City of Aumsville City Council 

FROM: Ron Harding, City Administrator 

SUBJECT:  Utility Rate Study 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Aumsville’s wastewater system is in the process of being upgraded to a sequencing 
batch reactor system, with an estimated cost of $28,000,000. The potable water system also 
has multiple projects in progress to expand the current capacity by connecting a new well to 
the city water lines, and to construct a new water reservoir. To keep pace with these upgrades 
and provide additional storage, a new public works facility is also being constructed. These 
projects are necessary in order to keep up with population growth and to meet EPA and DEQ 
standards.  

While the City has been able to secure over $16,000,000 in grant funding for the wastewater 
project, the City will also be required to finance $11,000,000 to fully fund the completion of this 
much-needed upgrade. In order to cover the costs of this financing, it will be necessary to 
increase utility rates for the residents of Aumsville.  

CURRENT SITUATION:  
While no residents want to pay more on their utility bills, regular annual increases are necessary 
to keep up with increased costs in operations and maintenance. With this much larger expense, 
a specialized view from an external party will help justify utility increases, verify the rate 
increase amounts and trajectory over time, and provide a neutral perspective from experienced 
professionals in rate increases.  

City staff has reached out to three different agencies (Toth & Associates, EES Consulting, and 
FCS Group) to request proposals for a utility rate study process. The proposal request (Exhibit 
A), proposals from FCS Group (Exhibit B) and Toth & Associates (Exhibit C), and a comparison 
table (Exhibit D) are included in this packet. EES Consulting did not respond to the request. 
Based on the details offered, FCS Group’s proposal is the lowest at $22,780 compared to Toth & 
Associates’ $25,825 (a difference of $3,345). 

FCS Group provided a detailed task list, and options for reducing the cost of their services such 
as by holding workshops remotely. They also provided the option to obtain more detailed 
reports in addition to the Excel-based toolkit, which can be added on at a later time. FCS Group 

Agenda Item 6C



2 

is a local agency with offices in Washington and Oregon and is well-reviewed by several cities in 
Oregon. Toth & Associates also has offices in Oregon, but the proposal provided was less 
personalized, provided little explanation of their process, and no detailed task list. Toth & 
Associates left their tasks and associated costs in a more lump-sum style breakdown, with no 
explanation or mention of customizing the project to fit the City’s needs.  

City staff has worked with FCS Group in the past. As FCS Group provided a detailed, 
customizable task list and cost breakdown in their bid submittal which indicates a clear 
understanding of the City's needs, staff would recommend awarding this project to FCS Group.  

RECOMMENDATION:  
With the level of communication provided by FCS, and the flexibility offered to further tailor the 
project to the City’s needs, staff recommends approving the FCS Group rate study project 
proposal in the amount of $22,480 to conduct research and assemble a financial plan and 20-
year rate forecast.   

COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

 I move to approve the FCS Group utility rate forecasting proposal as presented by staff
 I move to approve the FCS Group utility rate forecasting proposal as amended by

 Remand back to staff to provide additional research or modification.

Agenda Item 6C



CITY OF AUMSVILLE 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM  

FINANCIAL PLAN AND RATE FORECAST 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 
Brief History of Aumsville’s Wastewater Treatment 
During a compliance inspection in 2018, DEQ notified the City that DEQ would begin 
enforcing ammonia limit violations adopted in 2010, but not previously enforced. A mutual 
agreement order (MAO) was put into place, requiring the City to upgrade its wastewater 
system.  

A compliance schedule was agreed upon between the City and DEQ, and the MAO was 
dissolved. The compliance schedule requires the City to construct a mechanical 
processing system to sufficiently treat the wastewater according to DEQ ammonia and 
TMDL limits.  

Current Situation 
The City has been working closely with its contracted engineering team to create a plan 
to proceed with the project. Funding has been secured through several sources, including 
a combination of grants and loans from USDA, ARPA, DEQ, Business Oregon, state 
budgeted appropriations, and congressionally directed spending. Estimated project costs 
are $28,000,000. Approximate funding so far generally includes: 

• $11,000,000 in loans
• $16,181,000 in grants
• $1,200,000 City budgeted funds

Additional Resources 
For further details, you may reference the Wastewater Project page on the City’s website. 
Included there are a brief (4-minute) informational video on the project, a brief timeline of 
preceding events, and FAQ for the City’s residents.  

For any other questions you may contact: 
Kirsti Pizzuto 
Assistant City Administrator 
503-749-2030 x303
kpizzuto@aumsville.us

Agenda Item 6C
EXHIBIT A

https://www.aumsville.us/publicworks/page/wastewater-project


GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK 
Task 1 | Project Initiation Meeting 
A project initiation meeting with the consultant team and Aumsville’s project team will be 
scheduled at the start of the project to establish goals and objectives of the project. To be 
reviewed in this meeting: 

• Scope of work 
• Project objectives 
• Expectations 
• Deliverables 
• Project schedule 
• Key milestones 
• Communications methods 

Task 2 | Data Collection 
Provide a data needs list encompassing historical and projected revenue, expenses, 
fiscal policies, capital plans, fund balances, and system planning data. The data should 
be reviewed, analyzed, and validated for inclusion in the study process. 

Task 3 | Historical Budget vs. Actual Validation 
Review and validate actual revenues received and expenses incurred against budgeted 
values. 

Task 4 | Financial Plan and Rate Forecast 
Establish a sustainable, multi-year (20- year) financial management plan that meets the 
projected total financial needs of the utility through the generation of sufficient, 
sustainable revenue. Annual cash flow needs should be developed by identifying 
expenses incurred to operate and manage the system including: 

• Capital investment funding (improvements, expansion, and replacement) 
• Expenses incurred to operate, maintain, and manage the system 
• Debt repayment 
• Cash flow needs 
• Fiscal policy achievement Tasks should include, for example: 

» Develop a forecast of operating revenues and expenses to reflect the most 
recently approved budget, adjusting for any known future changes in annual 
non-capital costs associated with the operation, maintenance, and administration 
of the system. Reasonable proposed changes may include additional staffing 

Agenda Item 6C



needs and other operating costs associated with maintaining the system along 
with initiating new or enhanced program activities. 

» Incorporate the anticipated capital needs identified in the city budget CIP and/or 
other comprehensive system planning documents into a capital planning module. 
Develop a capital funding analysis that balances available funding from internal 
resources such as rate revenue and reserve funds with external funding from 
connection charges, contributions, and additional debt, if needed. 

» Evaluate the level of annual system reinvestment and/or depreciation funding. 
Develop a target level for consideration based on depreciation expense. 
Calculate the financial impact on rate levels of meeting this target. 

» Evaluate cash flow needs to meet existing and anticipated new annual debt 
service requirements and debt coverage requirements. Identify financial impacts 
of alternative funding mechanisms (e.g., bonds, USDA loan and/or other low 
interest loans). 

» Provide a fiscal policy review that compares existing policies to industry practices 
to determine whether there are enhancements that would strengthen the financial 
health of the system. We will recommend new policies or benchmark ratios, as 
warranted. 

» Develop a fund balance tracking analysis to track existing City funds such as 
operating reserves and capital reserves. The analytical module will include annual 
inflows and outflows of funds and monitor target balances for compliance with 
established fiscal policies. 

» Test the sufficiency of current revenues in meeting all annual system obligations. 
Identify any projected shortfalls over the forecast period. Rate revenue sufficiency 
will be tested from two perspectives: the ability to meet all cash obligations, and 
the attainment of any debt coverage requirements. 

» Design a rate implementation strategy that meets the wastewater system’s 
financial obligations over the twenty-year planning horizon and provides smooth 
and moderated impacts to ratepayers. 

» Develop rate scenarios to evaluate the impact of changes to key variables such 
as funding sources, growth rates, capital project need and timing, or others 
identified by the City.  

» At the end of the engagement, deliver an electronic copy of the financial 
planning model for internal use. 

Agenda Item 6C



Task 5 | Rate Design 
Perform a comparative survey with neighboring jurisdictions and determine necessary rate 
adjustments. No rate structure changes are anticipated for this effort. Any needed 
adjustments will be applied equally to each rate class and rate component. 

Task 6 | Review Meetings 
Review project financial plan and rate forecast findings as necessary/relevant throughout 
the project.  

Task 7 | Workshops/Presentations 
As necessary, project team may be asked to present information to staff and/or Council 
on the rate study process and provide important updates as they surface. Workshops may 
include discussions of key assumptions, methodology, and proposed rate developments 
for input and discussion. Proposed workshops: 

• Workshop 1 – Present initial findings and receive feedback
• Workshop 2 – Final recommendations (remote)

» Include updated presentation of findings with initial input/feedback incorporated,
development of final recommendations.

Task 8 | Documentation 
Provide an executive level report documenting the rate study process, methodology, 
key assumptions, results, and recommendations. All technical exhibits and datasets 
developed as part of the study should be delivered to the City for internal use as Excel 
documents or another agreed upon format. 

SCHEDULE 
A financial plan and rate forecast study such as this is expected to take approximately 
three to six months to complete. A specific project schedule that meets the City’s needs 
will be developed during the project initiation meeting. 

Agenda Item 6C



Firm Headquarters 
Redmond Town Center 
7525 166th Ave NE, Ste D-215 
Redmond, Washington 98052 

Established in 1988 
Washington | 425.867.1802 

Oregon | 503.841.6543 
Colorado | 719.284.9168 

 

CITY OF AUMSVILLE 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL PLAN AND  

RATE FORECAST 

FCS GROUP is pleased to submit this proposed scope of services and budget for a Wastewater 

System Financial Plan and Rate Forecast. The City’s needs were discussed with Ron Harding City 

Administrator along with Josh Hoyer and Kirsti Pizzuto on September 29, 2023. The financial 

analysis will evaluate the sufficiency of existing revenue to meet the total annual obligations of the 

wastewater system including fiscal policy obligations, operation, and maintenance (O&M) costs, 

capital needs and anticipated new loan obligations required to execute the wastewater treatment plant 

upgrades for regulatory compliance. The resulting plan will serve to establish a blueprint for 

achieving revenue stability, sufficiency, and cost-based utility rates.  

The tasks noted below are proposed as part of this effort.  

TASK PLAN 

Task 1 Project Initiation Meeting 

A project initiation meeting will be scheduled at the commencement of the project with the 

consultant team and City project team. This meeting will establish the goals and objectives of the 

overall project and focus the efforts of the project team. The items covered at the meeting include 

review of the scope of work, identify project objectives, expectations, and deliverables, outline the 

project schedule and key milestone review points, and discuss appropriate lines of communication. 

This meeting is proposed as remote using the application of the City’s choice. 

Task 2 | Data Collection  

Provide a data needs list encompassing historical and projected revenue, expenses, fiscal policies, 

capital plans, fund balances, and system planning data. The data will be reviewed, analyzed, and 

validated for inclusion in the study process. 

Task 3 | Historical Budget vs. Actual Validation  

Accurate revenue and expense forecasting are the building blocks of a successful rate study. 

Validation of the actual revenues received, and expenses incurred, against budgeted values is critical 

as it is the foundation for developing the multi-year revenue forecast. This process has proven 

beneficial in identifying over/under spending against budget values to arrive at the most realistic 

forecast basis underlying the forward-looking financial plan.  

Agenda Item 6C

EXHIBIT B



City of Aumsville  October 2023 

Wastewater System Financial Plan and Rate Forecast  page 2 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

Task 4 | Financial Plan and Rate Forecast  

This task establishes a sustainable, multi-year (20 year) financial management plan that meets the 

projected total financial needs of the utility through the generation of sufficient, sustainable revenue. 

Annual cash flow needs are developed by identifying expenses incurred to operate and manage the 

system including:  

⚫ Capital investment funding (improvements, expansion, and replacement) 

⚫ Expenses incurred to operate, maintain, and manage the system 

⚫ Debt repayment 

⚫ Cash flow needs 

⚫ Fiscal policy achievement 

Tasks are as follows: 

» Develop a forecast of operating revenues and expenses to reflect the most recently approved 

budget. Adjust for any known future changes in annual non-capital costs associated with the 

operation, maintenance, and administration of the system. Changes may include additional 

staffing needs and other operating costs associated with maintaining the system along with 

initiating new or enhanced program activities. 

» Incorporate the anticipated capital needs identified in the city budget CIP and/or other 

comprehensive system planning documents into a capital planning module. Develop a capital 

funding analysis that balances available funding from internal resources such as rate revenue 

and reserve funds with external funding from connection charges, contributions, and 

additional debt, if needed.  

» Evaluate the level of annual system reinvestment and/or depreciation funding. Develop a 

target level for consideration based on depreciation expense. Calculate the financial impact 

on rate levels of meeting this target. 

» Evaluate cash flow needs to meet existing and anticipated new annual debt service 

requirements and debt coverage requirements. Identify financial impacts of alternative 

funding mechanisms (e.g., bonds, USDA loan and/or other low interest loans). 

» Provide a fiscal policy review that compares existing policies to industry practices to 

determine whether there are enhancements that would strengthen the financial health of the 

system. We will recommend new policies or benchmark ratios, as warranted.  

» Develop a fund balance tracking analysis to track existing City funds such as operating 

reserves and capital reserves. The analytical module will include annual inflows and outflows 

of funds and monitor target balances for compliance with established fiscal policies.  

» Test the sufficiency of current revenues in meeting all annual system obligations. Identify 

any projected shortfalls over the forecast period. Rate revenue sufficiency will be tested from 

two perspectives: the ability to meet all cash obligations, and the attainment of any debt 

coverage requirements. 

» Design a rate implementation strategy that meets the wastewater system’s financial 

obligations over the twenty-year planning horizon and provides smooth and moderated 

impacts to ratepayers.  

Agenda Item 6C



City of Aumsville  October 2023 

Wastewater System Financial Plan and Rate Forecast  page 3 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

» Develop rate scenarios to evaluate the impact of changes to key variables such as funding 

sources, growth rates, capital project need and timing, or others identified by the City.  The 

budget includes three (3) alternative scenarios. 

» At the end of the engagement, we will deliver an electronic copy of the financial planning 

model for internal use. 

Task 5 | Rate Design 

Rate design determines how the target revenue will be generated for the utility. No rate structure 

changes are anticipated for this effort. Any needed adjustments will be applied equally to each rate 

class and rate component (fixed and/or variable). 

A comparative survey will also be performed with up to five (5) neighboring jurisdictions.  

Task 6 | Review Meetings 

This task includes three (3) staff project team meetings to review the financial plan and rate forecast 

findings. 

⚫ Meetings include one (1) meeting @ 2 hours and two (2) meetings @ 1 hour each.  

To minimize costs, we have planned for all project review meetings to be conducted via remote 

session. We are happy to provide additional meetings as requested. The additional meetings will be 

billed on time and materials.  

Task 7 | Workshops/Presentations 

The success of a rate study relies on an open and involved process for informing staff and Council on 

the rate study process and to clearly define the cost basis for the fees imposed on customers by 

linking the financial requirements to costs.  

We propose two (2) presentations to the City Council conducted in a workshop or work session 

format to maximize interaction and collaboration. These workshops will discuss key assumptions, 

methodology, and proposed rates developed for input and discussion. To minimize costs, we have 

planned for one (1) workshop onsite and the second via remote session. 

⚫ Workshop 1 – Present initial findings and obtain feedback (onsite) 

» Includes presentation development. 

⚫ Workshop 2 – Final recommendations (remote) 

» Includes update presentation with initial input/feedback incorporated, development of final 

recommendations.  

Task 8 | Documentation 

An executive level report documenting the rate study process, methodology, key assumptions, 

results, and recommendations. All technical exhibits developed as part of the study will be contained 

in the Excel based financial planning toolset delivered to the City for internal use. 

SCHEDULE 
A financial plan and rate forecast study such as this generally takes three to six months to complete. 

Completion of the studies within the City’s schedule is based on a variety of issues. These issues 

Agenda Item 6C



City of Aumsville October 2023 

Wastewater System Financial Plan and Rate Forecast page 4 

www.fcsgroup.com 

include timeliness of receipt of requested data/information; quality of data; ability to schedule 

meetings in a timely manner; and the ability of the City to provide policy direction for the study to 

move forward at key study milestones. A specific project schedule that meets the City’s needs will be 

developed during the project initiation meeting. 

BUDGET 
The total proposed level of effort to complete the Wastewater Financial Plan and Rate Forecast is 

summarized below. The technical analysis and review meetings total $15,105. The process tasks 

(Task 7-8) account for the remaining budget. This is an area the City can adjust to accommodate any 

budget limitations. Currently there are two council workshops included (one-onsite, one-remote). As 

an example, the City can reduce the budget by conducting both workshops remote for a savings of 

~$2,200. Another option is to eliminate the written documentation if the excel toolkit and 

presentation materials are sufficient documentation – savings of $4,685. We would be more than 

happy to negotiate the appropriate level of effort for this project if we have scaled our approach out 

of line with the City’s needs and/or expectations.  

Total Labor

Hours Budget

Project Initiation Tasks

Task 1: Project Initiation Meeting (remote) 1 1 2 1 5 $930

Task 2: Data Collection (data request and review/validation) 4 1 5 775

Technical Analysis Tasks

Task 3: Historical Budget vs. Actual Validation 1 4 5 880

Task 4: Financial Plan and Rate Forecast (3 scenarios) 4 8 40 52 9,580

Task 5: Rate Design (no rate structure changes) 2 4 6 1,080

Process Tasks

Task 6: Meetings/Presentations

- Project Review Meetings (1@2 hrs, 2@1 hrs each, remote) 4 4 8 1,860

Task 7: Workshops/Presentations

- Workshop #1 (presentation development, review) 2 2 8 2 14 2,540

- Workshop #1 (presentation time -onsite) 8 1 9 2,530

- Workshop #2 (presentation edits/changes) 1 2 4 7 1,375

- Workshop #2 (presentation time - remote) 2 2 930

Task 8: Documentation 1 4 20 2 27 4,685

TOTAL ALL TASKS 23 20 93 6 138 $27,165

Expenses (onsite travel) $600

TOTAL ALL (including expenses) $27,765
Optional:

Additional Meetings

Additional Onsite Meetings (w/ modified presentation) - expenses not included 8 4 12 $3,040

Additional Remote Meetings 2 2 4 $930

Principal Proj Mgr. Analyst AdminTASK

Agenda Item 6C

jhoyer
Highlight



PROPOSAL

November 22, 2023 

Attn: Kirsti Pizzuto, Assistant City Manager 
City of Aumsville 
595 Main Street 
Aumsville, Oregon 97325 

RE: RFP Response – Financial Plan & Rate Forecast 

Toth and Associates, Inc. (TOTH) is delighted to present this proposal in response to the City of Aumsville’s 
(the CITY) invitation. 

With a rich history of collaborating closely with various clients in cost of service studies and rate design, 
including municipalities, public utility districts, electric cooperatives, and other utility providers. TOTH 
brings a wealth of experience to this project. Over the years, our firm has successfully completed thousands 
of cost of service studies, rate studies, and other financial analyses for clients nationwide. 

Our team is equipped with skilled professionals, featuring Certified Public Accountants (CPAs), dedicated 
rate specialists focused exclusively on your rate project, and 71 engineers, including 39 Professional 
Engineers (PEs). This robust team is prepared to deliver the highest level of service. Our rates team 
possesses extensive insights into the intricacies of the utility sector, while our engineers are proficient in 
accounting principles, ensuring a thorough approach to your project. 

This proposal demonstrates our proficiency and mastery in conducting comprehensive cost of service 
analyses and crafting effective rate designs. Furthermore, our footprint in the Northwest, specifically in 
Oregon, is marked by a portfolio of engineering services. This experience has afforded us intimate 
familiarity with the region's regulatory landscape and compliance standards. 

We are well-versed in the many software tools commonly employed by utilities, maintaining confidence in 
our capacity to seamlessly generate compatible, exportable, and importable datasets within your system. 
We propose an estimated project cost not to exceed $25,825. 

Our vast experience positions us to accomplish your General Scope of Service and work within your three 
to six month schedule. Feel free to contact me to discuss any of this information further. We appreciate the 
opportunity to participate in this bidding process and look forward to a potential collaboration. 

Respectfully, 

Craig Woycheese, CPA 
Senior Rate Analyst 

Agenda Item 6C

EXHIBIT C



  Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 1 

INTRODUCTION 

Company Profile 

Toth & Associates, Inc. is a multi-disciplinary engineering consulting firm specializing in electric utility, structural, and civil 
engineering, utility rate studies and analysis, land surveying, grant writing, and GIS. TOTH is committed to providing high-
caliber, professional expertise and endeavors to provide easy access to our team on each project. TOTH has experience 
in large-scale transmission & distribution line design, substation design, and construction projects, including multi-million-
dollar wastewater systems and various buildings, including schools and FEMA safe rooms, and performing cost of service 
studies for as few as 500 meters to well over 100,000.    

TOTH was founded in 2003 and has grown into a large consulting engineering company. A chief advantage of using TOTH 
is that while we are a large firm, we are not a mega-firm. That allows us to give you personalized attention from our 
senior analysts, top-level engineers, and technical staff, and we still have a broad spectrum of resources available in-
house, which can be tapped for any project. Therefore, you can be confident that TOTH has the capacity and the high-
level expertise available to provide the services for the scope of work. 

We invest our specialized knowledge and experience in building enduring relationships with clients for the good of our 
communities. We work to develop healthy working relationships with local utilities, contractors, engineers, regulatory 
agencies, and materials vendors. This collaborative approach to project design and administration demonstrates our 
firm’s agility and willingness to understand and accommodate the requirements of other project stakeholders.  

Key Contact & Senior Analyst 
Craig Woycheese, CPA 
Senior Rate Analyst 
cwoycheese@tothassociates.com 
Phone: (417) 888-0645 
Fax: (417) 888-0657 
Web: tothassociates.com 

Company Information 
Toth & Associates, Inc. 
Formed in 2003 

Offices 
Portland, OR 
Springfield, MO 
Hermiston, OR 
Kennewick, WA 
Billings, MT 

Availability/Staffing 
TOTH has experienced in-
house staff to complete your 
COSA within your timeline. We 
do not need to bring in 
subcontractors.

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 2 

Organizational Structure 

TOTH was organized in 2003 as a corporation in the State of Missouri. Nine principals form the executive leadership and 
board of directors.  

Adam Toth, PE – President 
Louis Toth, PE – Director Emeritus 
Lewis Wiles, PE – Vice President, Transmission & Distribution Line Design Department Manager 
Brian Orr, PE – Vice President, Structural Engineering Department Manager  
Joe Tierney, PE – Vice President, Substation Engineering Department Manager 
Jeff Mueller, PE – Vice President, Electrical System Planning Department Manager 
Matt Miller, PE – Vice President, Civil Engineering Department Manager 
Shawn Barry, PE, CFM – Vice President, Civil Engineering Department Manager 
Jess Moran, PE – Vice President (Pacific Northwest Operations) 

Staffing Levels 

Resource Pool - 180

71 - Engineers
(39 PEs, 23 EIs, 9 Engineers)

3 - Engineering Technicians

36 - Field & Professional Staff

7 - Rates & Grant Professionals
(including 2 CPAs)

11 - Administrative Staff

32 - CAD/GIS Technicians/Specialists

3 - Professional Land Surveyors

17 - College Interns

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 3 

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE 

Our team has extensive experience in cost of service analysis and rate design with a proven track record in working 
with utility providers to perform rate analyses. Having performed well over a thousand cost of service studies, rate 
studies, and other financial analyses, we have assisted numerous municipalities, public utility districts, and electric 
cooperatives and developed rate structures that support the utility while still meeting its customer's needs. Our COSA 
services include but are not limited to the following: 

• Cost of Services Analysis for Regulated
and Unregulated Utilities

• Revenue Requirements Analysis
• Line Extension Policy Development

(System Capacity Charges)
• Testimony & Filing Experience with Public

Services
• Commissions in Multiple States
• Wholesale Purchase Power Agreement

Negotiation
• Development of Rates and Terms for

Distributed Generation
• Load Forecasting
• Fiber Grant Writing
• Financial Forecasting
• Solar and Other Renewable Cost

Feasibility Studies 
• Fiber to the Home Feasibility Studies
• Contract Negotiation with New

Customers
• Other Rate Concepts

o Residential Demand Rates
o Power Cost Adjustment
o Time of Use Rates
o Seasonal Rates
o Agricultural Rates

TOTH has experience with the family of rate concepts for power, wastewater, and water utilities. We show the results 
in a concise and easily understood manner. Our experience has also consisted of performing cost of service study 
workshops for utility management and boards. In all facets of the study, we will communicate with management and 
work with you to meet all items in the scope of services. 

Our Rates Department's past performance demonstrates our ability to develop complex rate study analyses and 
special contract rates for many consumers. Those consumers have ranged from food processing plants to irrigation 
and grain bins to campgrounds, mining operations, sales for resale installations, and many others, including service to 
500 MW of steel plant loads. 

Quick Glance 

• Over A 1,000 Utility Cost of Service Studies
and Other Financial Analyses

• Performed COSA Projects Ranging From
500 to 100,000+ Meters

• Senior Level Analyst Assigned
• Utilities Experienced CPA Dedicated to

Your Project
• Experienced Financial Staff Engaged On

Your Project 
• In-House Team Has The Capacity to

Complete Your Project on Time
• TOTH Is an Experienced Engineering Firm

Offering COSA as a Full, In-House Service

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 4 

TEAM MEMBER ROLES – RÉSUMÉS 

Craig Woycheese, CPA, Senior Rate Analyst, will manage and complete much of the study, including project lead and 
quality control. The DISTRICT will work directly with the project lead and have access to our team. In addition to 
standard technology, including email communication, TOTH will employ a secure website, Microsoft OneDrive and/or 
Microsoft SharePoint, to electronically exchange large data files with RGEC. 

Senior Rate Analyst & Project Lead (Rate Analyst 3) 

Name Craig Woycheese, CPA 

Affiliations and Honors: 
• National Society of Accountants for
Cooperatives
• Missouri Society of CPAs
Publications:
• A. L. Toth, C. R. Woycheese and J. B.
Chapman, "Rate Considerations Related to
Solar Distributed Generation," 2018 IEEE
Rural Electric Power Conference (REPC),
Memphis, TN, USA, 2018, pp. 50-60. doi:
10.1109/REPC.2018.00017

Craig is a Certified Public Accountant whose role at TOTH is as a Senior 
Rate Analyst. His work experience with planning for electric power 
systems has included all facets of load forecasting, customer usage 
data verification, analyzing purchase power contracts, and economic 
analysis. His other responsibilities in rate analysis and cost of service 
analysis include plant and expense allocations, revenue projections, 
determination of the rate of return by rate class, and final rate design. 

He has provided cost of service and rate assistance for cities across the 
country. Craig is skilled in presenting study results to utility 
management, city councils, and boards in document preparation and 
supporting testimony for Public Utility Commissions. 

Education 

Bachelor of Arts – Business & Accounting 
Drury University (1995-1999) 

Master of Business Administration 
Missouri State University (2006-2007) 

License(s)/Certification(s) Certified Public Accountant – Missouri License # 2009007473 

Years Experience 11 years 

Role/Responsibilities 
Senior Rate Analyst, Project Lead, and QA/QC 
Craig will be the key contact, provide project management, and 
perform QA/QC of all work. 

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 5 

President, Electrical Engineer 

Name Adam Toth, PE 

Affiliations and Honors: 
• Board of Directors – Big Brothers Big
Sisters of the Ozarks
• Leadership Springfield Signature Class
32 Member
• Rotary Club of Springfield Southeast
Member
• Greater Ozarks Leadership
Development Certificate

Publications: 
• A. L. Toth, C. R. Woycheese and J. B.
Chapman, "Rate Considerations Related
to Solar Distributed Generation," 2018
IEEE Rural Electric Power Conference
(REPC), Memphis, TN, USA, 2018, pp.
50-60. doi: 10.1109/REPC.2018.00017

Adam is the Executive President and partner with TOTH and has been with 
the company since its inception. He has over 18 years of experience as an 
engineer. Adam has been responsible for all phases of electrical system 
work, including planning, rate design, contract negotiation, distribution 
system design, load flow analysis, fault analysis, software design, CAD and 
GIS work, and information systems. He works primarily with electric 
cooperatives and municipalities. Adam has represented clients before 
multiple State Public Service Commissions. He oversees the distribution 
department, which includes several electric line design professionals. He 
also has experience performing analyses for nearly every electrical system 
component, including Arc Flash Studies, Flicker Studies, Load Flow Studies, 
Capacitor Studies, Sectionalizing Studies, Load Capacity Studies, Cost of 
Service Studies, Distributed Generation, and Net Metering. 

Presentations: 
• Analysis of Impact of Mass Implementation of DER Presentation,
National Rural Electric Cooperative
   Association (NRECA), TechAdvantage Conference, 2018. 
• Rate Considerations Related to Solar Distributed Generation
Presentation, IEEE Rural Electric Power
   Conference, 2018. 
• Overview of Electric Utility Planning, Arkansas Electric Cooperative
Corporation Engineering Workshop,
   Little Rock, Arkansas, 2014 
• Overview of Electric Utilities Presentation, Missouri Society of
Professional Engineers, Missouri, 2014
• Arc Flash for Distribution Cooperatives Presentation, Association of
Illinois Electric Cooperatives, IT and Engineering Conference, Illinois, 2015

Education 

Bachelor of Science - Electrical Engineering 
University of Missouri 

Master of Business Administration 
Missouri State University 

License(s)/Certification(s) Arkansas P.E. #13971  
Colorado P.E. # 0056618 
Florida P.E. # 86747 
Idaho P.E. #17330  
Illinois P.E. #062.062417  
Iowa P.E. #20073 
Missouri P.E. #2009001133 

Nebraska P.E. # E-17590 
North Dakota P.E. # PE-29184 
Oklahoma P.E. #24385  
Oregon P.E. #93232PE 
South Carolina P.E. # 37830 
Washington P.E. #57310 

Role/Responsibilities 
Principal, Electric Utility Planning, Cost of Service Studies, Distributed 
Generation, and Net Metering will provide additional QA/QC of work 
performed, especially from the engineering perspective. 

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 6 

Rate Analyst 2 

Name Lalita Handwerker 

Lalita has been a Rate Analyst at TOTH for four years. Her work 
experience with planning for water, sewer, and electric power 
systems has included customer usage data verification, economic 
analysis, rate analysis, cost of service analysis, plant and expense 
allocations, revenue projections, determination of the rate of 
return by rate class, and final rate design. 

Education 
Bachelor of Science - Mathematics 
College of the Ozarks (2000-2004) 

Years Experience 4 years 

Role/Responsibilities 
Project Analyst for Rate Projects  
Lali will be working with RGEC staff for some gathering of data and 
will perform analysis. 

Rate Analyst 1 

Name Paul Ruban 

Paul has been a Rate Analyst/Grants Specialist at TOTH for over two years. 
His work experience with planning for water, sewer, and electric power 
systems has included customer usage data verification, economic analysis, 
rate analysis, cost of service analysis, and plant and expense allocations.  

Education 
Bachelor of Science - Accounting  
Missouri State University (2016-2019) 

Years Experience 1 year in the rate department, 3 years at TOTH 

Role/Responsibilities 
Project Analyst for Rate Projects  
Paul will work with RGEC staff to collect data, assist in data analysis, and 
prepare deliverables. 

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 7 

PROJECT COST 

The project will be billed at our standard rates for all work required: hourly time by Craig Woycheese and supporting 
staff, overhead, data collection, report preparation, report copies, virtual meeting attendance, scheduled reporting, 
and two (2) in-person meetings for a workshop and to present to the City Council. This proposal includes TOTH’s 
development of a financial plan and rate forecast as requested in the General Scope of Work within the RFP. The 
project will be invoiced monthly with Net 30 terms.   

Fee Schedule: 

Engineer Principal (EP) .......................................................................................................... $255/hr 
Rate Analyst-3 (RA3) .............................................................................................................. $210/hr 
Rate Analyst-2 (RA2) .............................................................................................................. $160/hr 
Rate Analyst-1 (RA1) .............................................................................................................. $120/hr 

Cost Estimate: 

Est. Cost = $1,400 Est. Cost = $8,175 Est. Cost = $9,250 Est. Cost = $5,500 
Total Cost: 

$25,825 
Cost Not to Exceed 

This fee does include travel and accommodations to attend an in-person workshop and a second visit for a City 
Council presentation. All other meetings will be held virtually.  Additional in-person trips can be scheduled at the 
current cost of travel and meals if required. The cost includes the cost of hard copies for distribution during the City 
Council meeting. 

24,300 
1,500 

Validate Data Financial Analysis COSA/Rate Design Delivery/Presentation
Roll-Out

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 8 

REFERENCES & RELEVANT PROJECTS 

TOTH has performed similar requested services for hundreds of clients. Here is a select set of references and project 
profiles. 

Client:  Carthage Water and Electric Plant 

Service: Comprehensive Utility Rate Study 

Description of Services 
Performed 

Rate Analysis for Water, Wastewater, Electric Systems 

TOTH recently conducted a comprehensive utility rate study for Carthage Water & Electric 
Plant. The study included Carthage’s electric, water, and wastewater. Each utility has 
approximately 7,000 metered connections. 

Personnel Assigned to 
Service/Contract 

Craig Woycheese, Project Manager 
Lalita Handwerker, Project Analyst 

Reference/Contact Person Chuck Bryant  
General Manager 
(417) 237-7300

Address 627 W Centennial Ave. 
Carthage, MO 64836 

Client:  City of West Plains 

Service: Water, Wastewater, and Electric Analyses 

Description of Services 
Performed 

Rate Analysis for Water, Wastewater, and Electric 

Toth and Associates is completed a comprehensive cost of service and rate analyses for the 
City of West Plain’s Utility Department.  This service was for approximately 6,500 
customers and covers utilities of water, wastewater, and electric. 

Personnel Assigned to 
Service/Contract 

Craig Woycheese, Project Manager 
Lalita Handwerker, Project Analyst 

Reference/Contact Person Shayne Eades  
Utilities Director 
(417) 256-7176

Address 1910 Holiday Lane 
PO Box 710 
West Plains, MO 65775 

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 9 

  
 

 

Client:  Hermiston Energy Services – Hermiston, Oregon 

Service: Comprehensive Cost of Service and Rate Study 

Description of Services 
Performed 

TOTH has recently completed a full cost of service study and rate design for Hermiston Energy 
Services (HES), which consisted of approximately 5,300 metered connections. For this study, 
TOTH’s professionals: 

• Evaluated the existing member-customer classes and developed a list of member-
customer classes that included the cost of service model (including Small User Service, 
Seasonal Service, Commercial Service, Industrial Service, Area and Street Lighting 
Service).  

• Completed revenue requirement analysis based on the operating budget for the 
proposed calendar year. 

• Classified costs as distribution-customer related, distribution-demand related, purchase 
power-energy related, and purchase power-demand related to non-purchase power 
distribution costs. 

• Prepared a cost of service model allocating costs to rates classes. 
• Recommended adjustments based on the cost of service study results using the unit 

costs derived from the model. 
• Completed a comprehensive report summarizing the results of the cost of service and 

rate design and presented to the Board of Directors. 
Personnel Assigned to 
Service/Contract 

Craig Woycheese, Senior Analyst, Project Manager 
Lalita Handwerker, Project Analyst 

Reference/Contact 
Person 

Nate Rivera, General Manager 
750 W Elm Ave, Hermiston, OR 97838 
(541) 289-2000 | nrivera@hermiston.or.us 

 

  

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 10 

  
 

Client:  Canby Utility – Canby, Oregon 

Service: Cost of Service Study and Rate Analyses 

Description of 
Services Performed 

TOTH performed a cost of service study and rate analyses for Canby Utility’s electric system, 
consisting of approximately 7,700 metered connections. This encompassed examining revenues and 
expenses and allocating expenses across various customer classes. The study evaluated the 
appropriateness of existing rates, rate design, customer classifications, and the adequacy of current 
revenues. Additionally, it established the revenue requirements necessary for Canby Utility to 
sustain its operations, fund capital improvements, and facilitate the expansion of its infrastructure. 
 
System Information: 
Canby's electric distribution system receives capacity, energy, and transmission services from the 
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA). 
 
Basis for the Study: 
The study was grounded in several key sources of information: 

• Historical and Budgeted Data: Information provided by Canby Utility's administrative staff 
was instrumental in understanding past financial performance and forecasting future 
needs. 

• Operating Characteristics: Actual and assumed operating characteristics of the Electric 
Department and each customer class were considered to ensure accurate cost allocation. 

• Stakeholder Engagement: Discussions with City representatives provided valuable insights 
into the electric system's operations and the community's requirements. 

• Data Timeframe: The study was based on the determined test year, load data, and 
incorporated BPA's forecasted rates for the power cost portion of the expenses. 

 
Structure of the Study: 
For the COSA and Rate Design we employed a structured approach: 

• Revenue and Expense Analysis: The study initiated with the calculation of system revenues 
and expenses. Revenues were categorized into sales of power and other revenue sources, 
while expenses were divided into non-supply operating expenses and purchase power. 

• Segmentation of Expenses: Non-supply expenses were further categorized into customer 
and demand components, while purchase power was segmented into energy and demand 
expenses. This segmentation allowed for a granular evaluation of cost components. 

• Customer Class Analysis: Operating expenses were allocated to each rate class to calculate 
the margin for each class based on present rates. The returns for each class are compared 
to each other to determine if there were subsidies between rate classes. This step was 
critical in structuring rates to ensure fair returns for the total system and individual 
customer classes. 

• Unit Cost Analysis: Allocated costs for each class are divided by relevant billing unit.  For 
example, customer-related costs are divided by the number of bills in the class to 
determine the monthly cost to service.  The analysis is used to determine benchmarks for 
the monthly customer charge, demand charge(s), and energy charge(s).    

Personnel Assigned to 
Service/Contract 

Craig Woycheese, Senior Analyst, Project Manager 
Lalita Handwerker, Project Analyst | Paul Ruban, Project Analyst 

Reference/Contact 
Person 

Mike Schelske, Financial Manager 
1265 Southeast 3rd Avenue, Canby, OR 97013 
(503) 266-1156 | mschelske@canbyutility.org  

  

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 11 

Past Performance: 

The following table outlines select clients that TOTH has performed financial analysis, cost of service studies, capital 
plans, funding, and rates studies in the past five years.  

Client Name Contact Name Address Phone Number 
Date 

Finished 

Hermiston Energy 
Services 

Nate Rivera 750 W Elm Ave. Hermiston, OR 97838 (541) 289-2000 2020 

Canby Utility Mike Schelske 1265 Southeast 3rd Ave., Canby, OR 97013 2023 

City of Plummer Bill Weems 
PO Box B 
Plummer, Idaho 83851 (208) 686-1641 2020 

Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative 

Robert Echenrode 750 W Elm Ave Hermiston, OR 97838 (541) 564-4348 2019 

City of Waynesville Daniel Sheldon 
100 Tremont Center 
Waynesville, MO 65583 

(573) 774-6171 2021 

City of Monett Skip Schaller 217 5th Street 
Monett, Missouri 65708 

(417) 235-3763 2021 

City of West Plains Shayne Eades 
1910 Holiday Lane 
PO Box 710 
West Plains, MO 65775 

(417) 257-5433 2021 

Carthage Water and 
Electric Plant Chuck Bryant 627 W Centennial Ave. Carthage, MO 64836 (417) 237-7337 2020 

City of Marshall Jeff Bergstrom 
214 N Lafayette Ave # A Marshall, MO 
65340 

(660) 886-6966 2021 

City of Trenton Ron Urton 
1100 Main St. 
Trenton, Missouri 64683 

(660) 359-2283 2022 

City of Harrisonville, 
Missouri 

Andy Pollard 
300 E. Pearl St. P. O. Box 367. Harrisonville, 
MO 64701 

(816) 380-8900 2022 

City of Lebanon Richard Shockley 
401 S. Jefferson Ave. 
City Hall 
Lebanon, MO 65536 

(417) 532-2156 2022 

Northeast Power  Tracy Golden 
1410 W 7th St. 
Wayne, NE 68787 (402) 375-1360 2021 

Ozark Border Electric 
Cooperative 

David Schremp 
3281 S Westwood Blvd Poplar Bluff, MO 
63901 

(573) 785-4631 2022 

Three Rivers Electric 
Cooperative 

Roger Kloeppel 
1324 E Main St,  
Linn, MO 65051 

(573) 897-2251 2022 

Carroll Electric 
Cooperative 

Rob Boaz 
920 US-62 Spur 
Berryville, AR 72616 

(870) 423-2161 2019 

Mississippi County 
Electric Cooperative 

Brad Harrison 510 N Broadway St. Blytheville, AR 72315 (870) 763-4563 2019 

North Arkansas Electric 
Cooperative 

Mel Coleman 225 S Main St.  
Salem, AR 72576 

(870) 895-3221 2022 

Grundy Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. Scott Wilson 4100 Oklahoma Ave. Trenton, MO 64683 (660) 359-3941 2018 

United Electric 
Cooperative 

Jim Bagley 
401 US-71 BUS 
Savannah, MO 64485 

(816) 324-3155 2022 

Woodruff Electric 
Cooperative 

Michael Swan 
3201 Highway 1 North Forrest City, AR 
72335 

(870) 633-2262 2018 

North Central MO Electric 
Cooperative 

Loren Haines 
1098 State Hwy E 
Milan, MO 63556 

(660) 265-4404 2018 

Farmers' Electric 
Cooperative 

Rod Cotton 201 US-36 BUS Chillicothe, MO 64601 (660) 646-4281 2022 

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 12 

  
 

Client Name Contact Name Address Phone Number 
Date 

Finished 

Sac Osage Electric 
Cooperative 

Jim Davis 4815 E Highway 54 
El Dorado Springs, MO 64744 

(417) 876-2721 2018 

Lewis County Rural 
Electric Cooperative Shawn Walling 

18256 MO-16 
Lewistown, MO 63452 (573) 215-4000 2019 

Gascosage Electric 
Cooperative Carmen Hartwell 

803 S Ellen St. 
Dixon, MO 65459 (573) 759-7146 2023 

Arkansas Valley Electric 
Cooperative  

Lauren Robinson 1811 W Commercial St. Ozark, AR 72949 (479) 667-2176 In Progress 

West Central Electric 
Cooperative 

Michael Newland 
506 N Broadway St. 
Oak Grove, MO 64075 

(816) 565-4942 In Progress 

City of Seymour Sam Burt 
114 E. Washington  
PO Box 247 
Seymour, MO 65746 

(417) 935-4401 2018 

C & L Electric Cooperative Greg Smith 900 Church St 
Star City, AR 71667 

(870) 628-4221 2021 

Rich Mountain Electric 
Cooperative Brad Caster 

515 Janssen Ave 
Mena, AR 71953 (479) 394-4140 2022 

Northeast Oklahoma 
Electric Cooperative 

Daniel Webster 
27039 S 4440 Rd 
Vinita, OK 74301 

(918) 256-6405 2022 

Petit Jean Electric 
Cooperative 

Michael Kirkland 
270 Quality Drive 
Clinton, Arkansas 72031 

(501) 745-2493 2022 

Central Missouri Electric 
Cooperative 

Brian Jacoby 
22702 US-65 
Sedalia, MO 65301 

(660) 826-2900 2021 

City of Farmington Greg Beavers 110 West Columbia 
Farmington, MO 63640 

(573) 756-1701 2022 

City of Fayette Tyler Griffith 117 South Main 
Fayette, MO 65248 

(660) 248-2214 2022 

City of Gallatin Lance Rains 
112 East Grand Street 
Gallatin, MO 65640 (660) 663-2013 2021 

City of Lamar Russ Worley 
1104 Broadway 
Lamar, MO 64759 

(417) 682-5554 2021 

City of Nixa Doug Colvin 
1111 W Kathryn 
Nixa, MO 65714 

(417) 724-5670 2021 

Co-Mo Electric 
Cooperative 

Aaron Bradshaw 
PO Box 220 
Tipton, MO 65081 

(660) 433-6109 2022 

City of Fredericktown Ashley Baudendistal 124 West Main St 
Fredericktown, MO 63645 

(573) 783-3683 2021 

City of St. James James Fleming 150 S Jefferson  
St. James, MO 65559 

(573) 265-7013 2021 

City of Lockwood Ken Snider 
400 Main Street 
Lockwood, MO 65682 (417) 232-4221 2022 

City of Macon Stephanie Wilson 
106 W Bourke Street 
Macon, Mo 63552 

(660) 385-3173 2022 

City of Rolla Rodney Bourne 
102 W Ninth Street 
Rolla, MO 65401 

(573) 364-1572 2022 

Craighead Electric 
Cooperative 

Jeremiah Sloan 
4314 Stadium Blvd 
Jonesboro, AR 72403 

(870) 932-8301 2022 

Southwest Arkansas 
Electric Cooperative 

Kecia Wolf 2904 E Ninth Street 
Texarkana, AR 71854 

(870) 772-2743 2018 

Clay County Electric 
Cooperative David Smith 

3111 Hwy 67 
Corning, AR 72422 (870) 857-3521 2022 

MJM Electric Cooperative Joe Heyen 
18300 Shipman Rd 
Carlinville, IL 62626 (217) 707-6156 2019 

Agenda Item 6C



Toth & Associates, Inc. – Financial Analysis, Cost of Service and Rate Study & Design Proposal Page 13 

Client Name Contact Name Address Phone Number 
Date 

Finished 

Tri-County Electric 
Cooperative 

Michael Scheib 16894 US Hwy 63 
Lancaster, Mo 63548 

(660) 457-3733 In progress 

Jo-Carroll Energy Chuck Woods 
793 US 20 
Elizabeth, IL 61028 (800) 858-5522 2023 

Monroe County Electric 
Cooperative Alan Wattles 

6132 IL-3 
Waterloo, IL 62298 (618) 939-7171 In progress 

Menard Electric 
Cooperative 

Alisha Anker 
14300 IL-97  
Petersburg, IL 62675 

(800) 872-1203 2023 

Pemiscot-Dunklin Electric 
Cooperative 

Jamie Vaughn 
805 First Street 
Kennett, MO 63857 

(573) 757-6641 2023 

Howard Electric 
Cooperative 

Amber Overfelt 
205 N Cleveland Ave 
Fayette, Mo 65248 

(660) 248-3311 2022 

Callaway Electric 
Cooperative 

Tom Howard 1313 Cooperative Drive 
Fulton, Mo 65251 

(573) 642-3326 2022 

Ralls County Electric 
Cooperative Lynn Hodges 

17594 RT-19 
New London, Mo 63459 (573) 985-8711 2023 

Ozark Electric 
Cooperative Pat Oehlschlager 

10943 Highway 39 
Mt. Vernon 65712 (417) 466-2144 2018 

Macon Electric 
Cooperative 

Tim Korman 31571 Business Hey 36 East (660) 385-3157 2022 

Consolidated Electric 
Cooperative 

Lynn Thompson 
3940 E Liberty 
Mexico, Mo 65265 

(573) 581-3630 2023 

Howell-Oregon Electric 
Cooperative 

Dan Singletary 
6327 US Hwy 63 
West Plains, MO 65775 

(417) 256-2131 2023 

United Electric 
Cooperative 

Jim Bagley 401 North Hwy 71 
Savannah, Mo 64485 

(800) 748-1488 2022 

McKenzie Electric 
Cooperative Matt Hanson 

908 Fourth Ave NE 
Watford City, ND 58854 (701) 444-9288 In progress 

Northeast Oklahoma 
Electric Cooperative Daniel Webster 

27039 S 4440 Rd 
Vinita, OK 74301 (918) 256-6405 In Progress 

Berkeley Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. 

Mike Fuller 
1732 US-52 W 
Moncks Corner, SC 29461 

(800) 327-9615 In Progress 

Agenda Item 6C



FCS Group Toth 
Associates

Phase 1 Project Initiation and Data Collection $1,705
Data Validation $880 $1,400

Phase 2 Financial Plan/Analysis and Rate Forecast $9,580 $8,175
Phase 3 Rate Design $1,080 $9,250

Workshops/Delivery and Presentation $9,235 $5,500
$22,480 $25,825

Exhibit D

$3,345

Utility Rate Study Proposal Comparison

Total
Difference

Project Task

Agenda Item 6C



City of Aumsville November 2023 Monthly Police Report 

Calls for Service # 

Assist Other-Turner PD 7 

Assist Other-Fire  0 

Assist Other-DHS 7 

Assist Other-MCSO 2 

Assist Other-Stayton PD 6 

Assist Other-Other 2 

Citizen Contact 20 

Area Check  11 

Welfare Check 2 

Suicide / Attempt  0/1 

Traffic Complaint 2 

Civil Dispute 6 

False Alarm 6 

Noise Complaint 5 

Traffic Stops 81 

Suspicious Person/Vehicle/
Circumstance 

17 

Animal Complaint 5 

Ordinance Violation 6 

Emotionally Disturbed Persons 2 

Property: Found/Lost/Seized 1 

Person:  Missing/Found/Runaway 0/0/1 

Total 190 

Traffic Violation Cites 

Driving While Suspended 3 

Driving Uninsured 4 

No Operator’s License 1 

Fail to Install Internal Ignition 
Dev. 

2 

Speeding 1 

Illegal Alteration of Plates 1 

Fail to Register Vehicle 1 

Fail to Carry Proof of Insurance 2 

Total 15 

Crime # Arrested  

Strangulation 1 1 

Assault IV 1 1 

Criminal Mischief 3  0 

Fraud 2  0 

Warrant Arrest 3 3 

Harassment 4 0 

Probation Violation 1 1 

Disorderly Conduct 2 2 

DUII 1 1 

Driving While Suspend-
ed / Misdemeanor 

2 2 

Hit and Run 1 0 

Total 21 11 

DEPARTMENT MESSAGE: 
 
The reserves worked a total of 46 hours during the month of November: 46 volunteer hours 
and 0 paid hours. 
 
On the 11th, Chief Flowers attended the awards ceremony for the Special Olympics to hand 
out awards to the recipients. 
 
The 17th was the 53rd Annual OPOA (Oregon Police Officers Association) Awards Banquet 
at Spirit Mountain Casino.  Officer Phillip Wright was awarded the Life Saving Award for an 
incident that occurred in 2022.  His actions directly resulted in saving the life of a citizen 
experiencing a mental health crisis.   
 
Officer Taylor Mack is scheduled to graduate the Department of Public Safety 
Standards and Training Academy on December 15th.  He will be back in the city 
finishing his field training. 



TO: Mayor and City Council December 4, 2023 
FROM: Steve Oslie, Public Works Director 
SUBJECT: Public Works Report 

Water: The wells pumped as follows: 
Boone #1 Boone #2 Tower Reservoir Church Total 
862,100 2,389,000 1,624,000 0 3,770,200 8,645,300

We had problems with our chlorine analyzer for about 6 months. We finally got an answer to the 
problem when the representative came out to do some troubleshooting for us.  

The on-site chlorine generator now has some age and parts are difficult to find to contune rebuilds. 
We are getting quotes right now to replace it with the newest version. 

Found a faulty pressure switch was backwashing the water filters at every well startup, which 
happens about 3 times a day. A normal backwash cycle happens every 3 or 4 days.  

Sewer: Influent flows are way up and we are monitoring the lagoon levels daily.  

We had a contractor out to clear a couple mainlines of grease. The lines were also tv’d for 
collection system improvement planning/design, and to look for leaks in the pipe. 

Streets: The crew cleaned many of the catchbasins throughout the city. This was to help with 
water flow, help keep debris out of the streams, and comply with our TMDL requirements. 

A big shout-out to our Pacific Power guy, Curtis. He helped with putting up are street lights and he 
is always available to answer our power related questions.  

The streetsweeper got new flashing lights installed after watching drivers not paying much 
attention to it, out on the road.  

Parks: Getting ready for the Christmas in the Park event. Looks like it’s going to be a wet one. 
The tree was sourced from a property just outside of town. It does take a beating loading and 
unloading from the trailer.  

General: The roof is slowly going on at the new shop building. Freezing temperatures and rain are 
making it a little slower process. They are working on finishing up the ground work getting the 
storm and waterlines in.  

595 Main St. Aumsville, Oregon 97325 
(503) 749-2030TTY 711Fax (503) 749-1852
www.aumsville.us

Agenda Item 7B



December 2023 

System Development Charge Report 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 7

B



SDC % Water SDC %

Other City 

Funds % Fund Total

5,950.74$   5,950.74$   

15,123.68$   15,123.68$   

21,074.42$   21,074.42$   

-$   -$   -$   

100% 9,630.23$   100% -$   0% 028 9,630$   

-$   -$   -$   

-$   -$   -$   

100% -$   0% - 0% -$   

13% -$   0% - 0% -$   

100%* 102.15$   100% - 0% N/A 102.15$   

100% -$   0% - 0% N/A -$   

9,732.38$   -$   9,732.38$   

11,342.04$   

511,427.94$    

522,769.98$    

Water System Development Charges

Annual Report
In Accordance with ORS 223.311

SDC Administrative Services (024-610)

*Per ORS 223.307.5

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Beginning Fund Balance

ENDING FUND BALANCE

Engineering/Surveying/Misc Project Srvcs (024-626)

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES:

Interest Earned (024-402)

Materials and Services

Capital Outlay

New MG Reservoir Site Purchase & Development - 190 Klein

Dec-23

Year Ended June 30, 2023

REVENUES:

System Development Fees (024-420)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Water Rights Management/Water Supply Planning

Transfer to Water Fund

SDC Administrative Cost

Debt Service Cost

Transfer to General Fund (024-852)

New Wells (024-801)

New System Development (024-800)

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 7

B



SDC % Sewer SDC %

Other City 

Funds % Fund Total

7,386.09$   7,386.09$   

22,263.28$   22,263.28$   

-$   -$   

29,649.37$   29,649.37$   

100% 82,843.93$   0% -$   0% 82,843.93$   

0% -$   0% -$   

-$   -$   -$   

-$   -$   -$   

100%* 102.14$   102.14$   

100%* -$   -$   

-$   

-$   

82,946.07$   -$   82,946.07$   

(53,296.70)$     

801,912.87$    

748,616.17$    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES:

System Development Charges (029-421)

Interest Earned (029-402)

Capital Outlay

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services

SDC Administrative Services (029-610)

Engineering/Surveying/Misc Project Svcs (029-626)

TOTAL REVENUE

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Sewer System Development Charges

Annual Report
In Accordance with ORS 223.311

Grants/Reimbursement (029-417)

Dec-23

New System Development (029-800)

Land Acquisition (029-801)

To General Fund/Admn Services Reimbursement (029-852)

SDC Administrative Cost

*Per ORS 223.307.5

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Beginning Fund Balance

ENDING FUND BALANCE

Debt Service Cost

To Sewer Imp. Fund - Prjct Shr Reimbursement (029-825)

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 7

B



SDC % Street SDC %

Other City 

Funds % Fund(s) Total

5,045.13$        5,045.13$        

16,109.98$      16,109.98$      

21,155.11$      21,155.11$      

46,974.65$      -$                     0% N/A 46,974.65$      

-$                     -$                     0% N/A -$                     

-$                     -$                     -$                     

-$                     -$                     

 Streets 

(014), 

Spec. 

Projects 

(017) 

-$                     

-$                     -$                     -$                     

-$                     -$                     -$                     

100%* 102.14$           100% -$                     0% N/A 102.14$           

47,076.79$      -$                     47,076.79$      

   (25,921.68)$     

575,550.64$    

549,628.96$    

REVENUES:

Year Ended June 30, 2023

SDC Administrative Services (030-610)

System Development Fees (030-421)

Interest Earned (030-402)

TOTAL REVENUE

Transportation System Development Charges

Annual Report
In Accordance with ORS 223.311

 Transportation Improvements (030-800) 

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services

Capital Outlay

Engineering/Surveying/Misc Project Srvcs (030-626)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

SDC Administrative Cost

Dec-23

Transfer to Gen Fund/Admin Services Reimbursement (030-825)

*Per ORS 223.307.5

 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Beginning Fund Balance

ENDING FUND BALANCE

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 7

B



SDC % Sewer SDC %

Other City 

Funds % Fund Total

-$  -$  

10.95$   10.95$   

10.95$   10.95$   

100% -$   -$   -$  

-$   -$   -$  

-$   -$   -$  

-$   -$   -$  

100%* -$   -$  

100%* -$   -$  

-$  

-$  

-$   -$   -$  

10.95$   

365.84$   

376.79$   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES:

System Development Charges (034-421)

Interest Earned (034-402)

Capital Outlay

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services

SDC Administrative Services

Engineering/Surveying/Misc Project Svcs

TOTAL REVENUE

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Storm Drainage System Development Charges

Annual Report
In Accordance with ORS 223.311

Dec-23

New System Development - Cleveland St. Storm Drainage (Bethel Baptist)

Land Acquisition

To General Fund/Admn Services Reimbursement

SDC Administrative Cost

*Per ORS 223.307.5

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Beginning Fund Balance

ENDING FUND BALANCE

Debt Service Cost

To Sewer Improvement Fund - Prjct Shr Reimbursement

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 7

B



SDC % Parks SDC %

Other City 

Funds % Fund Total

3,325.00$   3,325.00$   

1,872.44$   1,872.44$   

-$   -$  

5,197.44$   5,197.44$   

100% 13,433.35$   0% -$   13,433.35$   

100% 1,243.25$   -$   1,243.25$   

100% -$   0% 0% -$  

100% -$   0% -$   -$  

0% -$   -$  

100% 102.15$   102.15$   

100% -$   -$  

100% -$   0% #DIV/0! -$  

100% -$   0% -$   -$  

14,778.75$   -$   14,778.75$   

(9,581.31)$   

67,513.08$   

57,931.77$   

SDC Administrative Services (032-610)

Park Improvements (032-800) - Wildwood Park Restroom/Shelter

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

SDC Administrative Cost

Transfer to General Fund/Admn Services Reimbursement (032-852)

Transfer to Park Fund/PW Labor Reimbursement

Capital Outlay

Transfer to OPRD Local Government Grant Fund

Land Acquisition (032-801)

Engineering/Surveying/Misc Project Srvcs (032-626)

Debt Service

Land Acquisition Principal (032-870)

Land Acquisition Interest (032-871)

*Per ORS 223.307.5

 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Beginning Fund Balance

ENDING FUND BALANCE

Transfer from Park Fund/Project Reimbursement

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Dec-23

Park System Development Charges

Annual Report
In Accordance with ORS 223.311

REVENUES:

System Development Charges

Interest Earned

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 7

B


	1a Agenda 12.11.2023
	3a 1 Minutes 11-13-2023
	3b AP Register
	4a 1 Staff Report Ord 723 - PacifiCorp Franchise Ext
	4a 2 Ord 723 - PacifiCorp Franchise Ext
	6a 1 Staff Report - Resolution 12-23 SDC policy
	6a 2 RESO 12-23-Adopting Specific SDC Policy Per HB 2984
	6b 1 Staff Report Water Storage and Pump Station Improvements
	6b 2 RL Reimers Contract Water Storage and Pump Station
	6c 1 Staff Report Utility Rate Study
	6c 2 Utility Rate Study Exhibits Labeled
	Exhibit A - Utility Rate Study Proposal Request
	Project Background
	Brief History of Aumsville’s Wastewater Treatment
	Current Situation
	Additional Resources

	General Scope of Work
	Task 1 | Project Initiation Meeting
	Task 2 | Data Collection
	Task 3 | Historical Budget vs. Actual Validation
	Task 4 | Financial Plan and Rate Forecast
	Task 5 | Rate Design
	Task 6 | Review Meetings
	Task 7 | Workshops/Presentations
	Task 8 | Documentation

	SCHEDULE

	Exhibit B - Utility Rate Study Proposal - FCS highlight
	Exhibit C - Utility Rate Study Proposal - Toth Associates Exhibit C
	INTRODUCTION
	FIRM QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE
	TEAM MEMBER ROLES – RÉSUMÉS
	PROJECT COST
	REFERENCES & RELEVANT PROJECTS

	Exhibit D - Utility Rate Study Comparison Table

	7a PD Report
	7b PW Report
	7b SDC Report
	Cover Page
	Water SDC Annual Report
	Sewer SDC Annual Report
	Transportation SDC Annual Report
	Storm Drainage SDC Annual Report
	Park SDC Annual Report




